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________________________________________________________

· · · · · ·FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION

________________________________________________________

· · · · · · PUBLIC MEETING/WORKSHOP HEARING

· · · · · · · · · · · · LOCATION

· · · · · ·Joseph P. Cresse Hearing Room 148
· · · · · · ·Betty Easley Conference Center
· · · · · · · · · ·4075 Esplanade Way
· · · · · · Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

· · · · · · · · · ·(Page Nos. 1 - 51)

· · · · · · · · Thursday, July 11, 2024

· · · · · · · · ·9:31 a.m. - 10:19 a.m.

· · · · · BEFORE:· ·Vice Chair Julie I. Brown
· · · · · · · · · · Commissioner Charles Drago
· · · · · · · · · · Commissioner John D'Aquila
· · · · · · · · · · Commissioner Tina Repp
· · · · · · · · · · Executive Director, Louis Trombetta

· · · · · · ·Stenographically Reported By:
· · · · · · · · · · ·I. Iris Cooper
· · · · · · · · ·Stenographic Reporter

Job No.: 352968

4



Page 2
·1· ·APPEARANCES:· (Appearing remotely via Zoom)

·2
· · ·COMMISSION MEMBERS:
·3
· · ·Vice Chair Julie I. Brown
·4· ·Commissioner Charles Drago
· · ·Commissioner John D'Aquila
·5· ·Commissioner Tina Repp
· · ·Executive Director, Louis Trombetta
·6

·7

·8· ·PARTICIPANTS:

·9· ·- Emily Alvarado, Deputy Chief Attorney

10· ·- Joe Dillmore, Director of Pari-Mutuel Wagering

11· ·- Ross Marshman, Deputy Executive Director
· · · · · · · · · · and Chief Legal Officer
12
· · ·- Lisa M. Mustain, Director Of Administration
13
· · ·- Jamie Pouncey, Program Administrator
14
· · ·- Elizabeth K. Stinson, Chief Attorney
15
· · ·- Marc Taupier, Deputy General and Chief Gaming
16· · · · · · · · ·Enforcement Legal Advisor

17· ·- Elina Valentine, General Counsel

18· ·- Carl Herold, Director of Law Enforcement 

19

20
· · ·OTHERS PRESENT:
21
· · ·- Various Members of the Public
22
· · ·- The Florida Channel
23

24

25
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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·INDEX OF PROCEEDINGS
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · PAGE
·2
· · ·1. Discussion of renewal applications for slot
·3· · · machine license

·4· · · 1.1. 2024-029142 – Gretna Racing, LLC· · · · · · · · · 5

·5· ·2. Discussion of application for non-wagering
· · · · pari-mutuel license
·6
· · · · 2.1. 2024-020893 – Florida Standardbred· · · · · · · · 6
·7· · · · · · · · · · · · ·Breeders' and Owners'
· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Association, Inc.
·8
· · ·3. Discussion of amended application for pari-mutuel
·9· · · operating licenses

10· · · 3.1. 2024-034591 – Gulfstream Park Racing· · · · · · · 9
· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·Association, Inc.
11
· · ·4. Discussion of amended applications for cardroom
12· · · licenses

13· · · 4.1. 2024-031317 – Dania Entertainment Center,· · · · 10
· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·LLC
14
· · · · 4.2. 2024-034688 – Dania Entertainment Center,· · · · 10
15· · · · · · · · · · · · ·LLC

16· ·5. Discussion of default final order

17· · · 5.1. 2023-044862 – Segarra, Sara Milagro· · · · · · · 10

18· ·6. Discussion of consent orders

19· · · 6.1. 2024-002207 – Sarasota Kennel Club, Inc.· · · · ·12
· · · · 6.2. 2024-021051 – Sarasota Kennel Club, Inc.· · · · ·13
20
· · ·7. Discussion of license denials
21
· · · · 7.1. 2024-018224 – Cotrone, Robert A.· · · · · · · · ·15
22· · · 7.2. 2024-021088 – Holmes, Teresa Rosezette· · · · · ·16

23· ·8. Discussion of final order pursuant to request
· · · · from respondent
24
· · · · 8.1. 2023-039465 – Durand, Kendra· · · · · · · · · · ·20
25
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·2
· · ·9. Discussion of policies and procedures
·3
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Page 5
·1· ·Thereupon, the following proceeding began at 9:31 a.m.:

·2· · · · · · ·VICE CHAIR BROWN:· We are going to begin our

·3· · · · agenda conference today on Thursday, July 11th.

·4· · · · The time is 9:31.· If you would so kindly please

·5· · · · stand for the pledge of allegiance, which will be

·6· · · · given by Commissioner Drago.

·7· · · · · · ·COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Please join me for the

·8· · · · pledge of allegiance.

·9· · · · · · ·(Pledge of allegiance recited.)

10· · · · · · ·VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, all.· I hope you

11· · · · all are having a great summer.· We have a big crowd

12· · · · in the audience today, and I know we have a few new

13· · · · employees that will be recognized under the

14· · · · Executive Director's report.· Really excited to

15· · · · have them join us today for this meeting.

16· · · · · · ·And with that, we are opening the meeting.

17· · · · We're going to go right into our Item No. 1,

18· · · · discussion of renewal applications for slot machine

19· · · · license.

20· · · · · · ·MS. POUNCEY:· Good morning.· Jamie Pouncey,

21· · · · pari-mutuel wagering.· First item is 1.1.

22· · · · · · ·VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Ms. Pouncey, could you just

23· · · · please pull the mic for the court reporter.

24· · · · Thanks.

25· · · · · · ·MS. POUNCEY:· Better?

8
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Better.

·2· · · · MS. POUNCEY:· First is 1.1, Case No.

·3· ·2024-029142.· It's Gretna Racing, L.L.C., who is

·4· ·applying for their annual slot machine license.

·5· ·They have submitted the application.· They possess

·6· ·a greyhound permit.

·7· · · · We've reviewed the documentation that was

·8· ·received on May 24th, and the application was

·9· ·deemed complete.· They have met all of the

10· ·requirements, and we recommend approval of their

11· ·slot machine license for the 2024/2025 year.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

13· · · · Commissioners, are there any questions on this

14· ·item?· Seeing none, can I get a motion to approve.

15· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Motion to approve.

16· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

17· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor, say

19· ·aye.

20· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

21· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Pouncey.

22· · · · Moving on to Item No. 2, discussion of

23· ·application for non-wagering pari-mutuel license.

24· · · · MS. POUNCEY:· Item No. 2.1, Case No.

25· ·2024-020893.· It's Florida Standardbred Breeders'

9



Page 7
·1· ·and Owners' Association.· They're applying for

·2· ·their annual non-wagering horse license.

·3· · · · They have submitted a request to extend their

·4· ·license through the end of the 2024/2025 fiscal

·5· ·year.· They have submitted the required

·6· ·information, and we recommend approval of this

·7· ·license.

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Pouncey.

·9· · · · Seeing that all statutory requirements are

10· ·complied with, I don't think this is a problem.

11· · · · Commissioners, any questions?

12· · · · Commissioner Drago.

13· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Just one comment, if I

14· ·could.· Could somebody, for the sake of the public

15· ·and everybody that may be listening, explain what

16· ·the non-wagering permit is because it's a little

17· ·different than what I think everybody is used to

18· ·hearing.· So can someone just explain what that is?

19· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Good question,

20· ·Commissioner Drago.· Thank you.

21· · · · MR. DILLMORE:· Good morning.

22· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Good morning.

23· · · · MR. DILLMORE:· Yes.· Non-wagering permit, it's

24· ·associated with horseracing for a prize or a purse.

25· ·However, no individual wagering can happen on the

10



Page 8
·1· ·winner of the event.· So they're just conducting

·2· ·the races for the purse or the prize.

·3· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So where are these races?

·4· ·Where do they hold them?· Where's their facility, I

·5· ·guess?

·6· · · · MR. DILLMORE:· I think we only have one

·7· ·currently.

·8· · · · Ms. Pouncey, can you help me out with the

·9· ·location they applied for?

10· · · · MS. POUNCEY:· We do.· We currently only have

11· ·one, and please don't quote me.· The name of the

12· ·facility is Sunshine Equestrian, I believe.· All of

13· ·that information is within the pamphlet

14· ·information.

15· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Thank you.

16· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

17· · · · Commissioners, if there are no other

18· ·questions, can we get a motion to extend the

19· ·non-wagering horseracing license for the fiscal

20· ·year.

21· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

23· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor, say

25· ·aye.

11
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·1· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Item No. 2.1

·3· ·passes.

·4· · · · Moving on to 3.1, which is a discussion of

·5· ·amended application for pari-mutuel operating

·6· ·licenses.

·7· · · · MS. POUNCEY:· Item No. 3.1 is Case No.

·8· ·2024-034591.· This is an application from

·9· ·Gulfstream Park Racing Association.· They applied

10· ·to amend their operating license by canceling one

11· ·of their thoroughbred performances.· They have

12· ·submitted the required documentation, and we are

13· ·requesting that this amendment be approved

14· ·effective July 1, 2024.

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

16· · · · If there are no questions on this, can we

17· ·please get a motion to approve the item effective

18· ·July 1, 2024.

19· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Motion to approve.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

21· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor, say

23· ·aye.

24· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

25· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· 3.1 passes.

12



Page 10
·1· · · · Ms. Pouncey, can you combine 4.1 and 4.2,

·2· ·please.

·3· · · · MS. POUNCEY:· Yes, ma'am.· 4.1, Case No.

·4· ·2024-031317.· 4.2 is 2024-034688.· This is a

·5· ·request to amend Dania Jai alai, Dania summer

·6· ·Jai alai's cardroom license.· They are requesting

·7· ·to add five tables to their cardroom.

·8· · · · They have paid the associated fees and

·9· ·submitted the required documentation and met the

10· ·requirements, and we recommend approval at this

11· ·moment.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

13· · · · Again, seeing all the statutory requirements

14· ·are complied with, can we please get a motion to

15· ·approve Item Nos. 4.1 and 4.2, if there are no

16· ·questions.

17· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

19· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor, say

21· ·eye.

22· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

23· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· The motion

24· ·passes.· We are moving on to discussion of default

25· ·final order Item No. 5.1.

13



Page 11
·1· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Emily Alvarado, for the record.

·2· ·Item 5.1 is 2023-044862, Sara Segarra.· In this

·3· ·case, you were provided a three-count

·4· ·administrative complaint alleging that she was

·5· ·arrested and convicted of four felony offenses.

·6· · · · Respondent failed to notify the Commission of

·7· ·her arrest and of her conviction as well.· She is

·8· ·subject to revocation of her cardroom employee

·9· ·occupational license pursuant to 550.105(5)(b).

10· · · · You were also provided the hand service

11· ·affidavit showing that she was served with the

12· ·administrative complaint.· Respondent failed to

13· ·respond within 21 days.

14· · · · Therefore, the Division would ask the

15· ·Commission to enter an order finding that she was

16· ·properly served with the administrative complaint,

17· ·that she failed to respond within 21 days, that the

18· ·facts in the administrative complaint are the facts

19· ·in this case and concluding that her cardroom

20· ·employee occupational license will be revoked.

21· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Alvarado.

22· · · · Commissioners, are there any questions on this

23· ·default final order?· Seeing none, can we please

24· ·get a motion to approve the final order revoking

25· ·the cardroom occupational license number.

14



Page 12
·1· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I will make a motion

·2· ·to approve the final order as stated.

·3· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Is there a

·4· ·second?

·5· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

·6· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Second.

·7· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor, say

·8· ·aye.

·9· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

10· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· The motion

11· ·passes unanimously.· We are going to move on to

12· ·discussion of consent orders 6.1 and 6.2, please,

13· ·separately.

14· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 6.1 is 2024-002207, Sarasota

15· ·Kennel Club.· In this case, you were provided an

16· ·administrative complaint alleging that respondent

17· ·violated Rules 75-11.020(1)(b) and 75-11.025(10) by

18· ·failing to have the drop box affixed with a lock to

19· ·the table and allowing a surveillance room camera

20· ·to be obstructed preventing the observation of

21· ·cardroom activities.

22· · · · They had no prior violations of either rule.

23· ·However, when the investigators went back about

24· ·three weeks after finding the violation, they did

25· ·see that it was still obstructed, the view was

15



Page 13
·1· ·still obstructed.

·2· · · · Since then, investigations has confirmed that

·3· ·it is not obstructed anymore.· I also followed up

·4· ·with the attorney for Sarasota, and they said they

·5· ·fixed the problem shortly after that February 6th

·6· ·date.

·7· · · · Respondent has sent back a signed settlement

·8· ·and consent order with a total fine of $750.

·9· ·Therefore, the Division would ask the Commission to

10· ·enter an order adopting and incorporating the

11· ·settlement and consent order in this case.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Alvarado.

13· · · · Commissioners, are there any questions on Item

14· ·No. 6.1?· If not, can we get a motion to adopt the

15· ·settlement and consent order.

16· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I would like to make a

17· ·motion to adopt the settlement order.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Is there a

19· ·second?

20· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.

21· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Any discussion?· All those

22· ·in favor, say aye.

23· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· 6.1 passes.· 6.2.

25· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 6.2 is 2024-021051, Sarasota

16



Page 14
·1· ·Kennel Club.· In this case, you were provided a

·2· ·filed administrative complaint alleging that

·3· ·respondent violated Rule 75-11.025(4)(C) by failing

·4· ·to have the current time stamps on three

·5· ·surveillance cameras.

·6· · · · There was one prior violation of this rule

·7· ·from 2022, which resulted in a $250 fine.

·8· ·Respondent has sent back a signed settlement and

·9· ·consent order in this case which had a $500 fine.

10· · · · The Division would ask the Commission to enter

11· ·an order adopting and incorporating the settlement

12· ·in this case.

13· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

14· · · · Commissioners, any questions on this?· If not,

15· ·can we get a motion to adopt the settlement consent

16· ·order.

17· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

19· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Any discussion?· All those

21· ·in favor, say aye.

22· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

23· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· The motion

24· ·passes unanimously.· We are moving on to a

25· ·discussion of license denials.· We only have two

17



Page 15
·1· ·today at this meeting, 7.1 and 7.2.

·2· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 7.1 is 2024-018224, Robert

·3· ·Cotrone.· The Division received an application from

·4· ·the applicant seeking pari-mutuel wagering

·5· ·professional individual occupational license.

·6· · · · After review of the application, it was

·7· ·discovered that he had several felony offenses,

·8· ·including a 1984 attempted robbery; a 1987

·9· ·attempted assault, criminal sale of a controlled

10· ·substance; and a 2003 grand larceny insurance fraud

11· ·and criminal mischief.

12· · · · The applicant applied for a waiver, which was

13· ·declined by the Executive Director.· Here, the

14· ·Division would ask that the Commission authorize a

15· ·notice of intent to deny or the issue of a letter

16· ·of license denial in this case.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

18· · · · Commissioners, any questions on 7.1?· Seeing

19· ·none, can we please get a motion to issue a letter

20· ·of license denial, intent to deny.

21· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Motion to issue the

22· ·letter.

23· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Is there a

24· ·second?

25· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.

18
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor, say

·2· ·aye.

·3· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All right.· Moving on to

·5· ·7.2.

·6· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 7.2 is 2024-021088, Teresa

·7· ·Holmes.· Here, the applicant sent in an application

·8· ·for a pari-mutuel wagering professional individual

·9· ·occupational license.· After review of her

10· ·application, it was discovered that she had a

11· ·felony theft from 2008.

12· · · · The applicant applied for a waiver, but did

13· ·not complete her waiver interview after several

14· ·attempts to get in contact with her.· The waiver

15· ·was then declined by the Executive Director.

16· · · · Here, the Division would ask that the

17· ·Commission authorize the issuance of a notice of

18· ·intent to deny in this case.

19· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

20· · · · Commissioners, if there are no questions, can

21· ·we please get a motion to issue a letter of intent

22· ·to deny.

23· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

25· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.

19



Page 17
·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor, say

·2· ·eye.

·3· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Ms. Alvarado, I know we

·5· ·talked about this at the last meeting under the

·6· ·Executive Director's report of the statutory

·7· ·changes that are in effect now -- that's July 1st

·8· ·-- with our Agency bill on some of these license

·9· ·denials.

10· · · · If you could just for edification of the

11· ·audience, I find that there's two notable ones on

12· ·how this will affect new applicants moving forward

13· ·on issuance of licenses.

14· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· I'm going to direct that to the

15· ·Executive Director.

16· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Sure.· I believe the two

17· ·you're referencing have to deal with, one,

18· ·misrepresentations that could be made on an

19· ·application.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Yes.

21· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· So if you remember, as part of

22· ·DBPR, there was a statute that allowed essentially

23· ·the divisions within DBPR to deny licenses based on

24· ·people lying on their application.

25· · · · When we left DBPR, we didn't have a similar
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·1· ·statute.· So one of the things we did with our bill

·2· ·was create that, so that is now in effect.

·3· ·Secondly, I think you were referring to the waiver

·4· ·process.

·5· · · · So we've tried to -- there was an

·6· ·inconsistency in the way Chapter 550, the

·7· ·pari-mutuel law, and Chapter 551, the slot law

·8· ·treated applicants that had essentially

·9· ·disqualifying offenses in their criminal history.

10· · · · Under Chapter 550, the applicant could apply

11· ·for a waiver of that disqualifying offense so that

12· ·they could still have their license application

13· ·considered.· That did not exist in 551.

14· · · · So now we've made a change that's effective

15· ·July 1st that allows applicants for slot licenses

16· ·to also take advantage of a waiver process.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· I appreciate

18· ·you sharing that information with the public.

19· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Can I ask just a quick

20· ·followup?

21· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Yes, Commissioner Drago.

22· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So I realize it goes into

23· ·effect July 1st, but does it affect applications

24· ·prior to July 1st that we might be reviewing like

25· ·today?
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·1· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· I'm going to pass this one to

·2· ·legal.· I think I know the answer, but just to be

·3· ·safe here.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Ms. Valentine.

·5· · · · MS. VALENTINE:· Elina Valentine, for the

·6· ·record.· The change in the law applies to

·7· ·applications that are pending as of July 1st.· And

·8· ·so there will be applications going forward that

·9· ·will be in front of the Commission for review, but

10· ·none that the 90-day time period would have expired

11· ·before July 1st.

12· · · · And the 90-day time period that I'm referring

13· ·to is the 90-day time period that we are required

14· ·by law to either grant or deny a license.· That's

15· ·under Chapter 120.

16· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· I'm sorry, but I think I

17· ·got more confused.· So if somebody filed an

18· ·application prior to July 1st and we reviewed it,

19· ·we accepted it, we reviewed it, but it hadn't been

20· ·approved yet for anything, is that -- then it comes

21· ·before us after July 1st, is that under the old

22· ·statute or the new statute?

23· · · · MS. VALENTINE:· That would be under the new

24· ·statute.

25· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· It would be.· Okay.· All
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·1· ·right.· Thank you.

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

·3· ·Commissioner Drago.

·4· · · · Commissioners, any other questions?· Okay.· We

·5· ·are going to move on to Item 8.1, which is

·6· ·discussion of final order pursuant to request from

·7· ·respondent.

·8· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Item No. 8.1 is 2023-039465,

·9· ·Kendra Durand.· The Division seeks to enter a final

10· ·order adding Ms. Durand to the permanent exclusion

11· ·list for all pari-mutuel and all slot machine

12· ·facilities.

13· · · · The Commission served respondent with an

14· ·administrative complaint seeking her exclusion from

15· ·both pari-mutuel and slot machine facilities.· The

16· ·respondent requested an informal hearing which was

17· ·held on May 16th.

18· · · · At this hearing, she represented that she did

19· ·not oppose the Commission seeking permanent

20· ·exclusion.· On May 23rd, the hearing officer

21· ·relinquished jurisdiction back to the Commission

22· ·for issuance of a final order.

23· · · · Therefore, the Division would ask that the

24· ·Commission enter a final order adding Ms. Durand to

25· ·the permanent exclusion list for all pari-mutuel
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·1· ·and all slot machine facilities.

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

·3· · · · Commissioners, if there are no questions, can

·4· ·we please get a motion for a final order

·5· ·permanently excluding this applicant.

·6· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I would like to make a

·7· ·motion for the order.

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Is there a

·9· ·second?

10· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Second.

11· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor, say

12· ·aye.

13· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· The motion

15· ·passes unanimously.· We are going to move on to

16· ·discussion of policies and procedures.· We're going

17· ·to defer Item No. 9.2, which is the dual and

18· ·secondary employment, and take up Item No. 9.1 and

19· ·9.3.· 9.1 is transporting detainees.

20· · · · Chief Herold, are you presenting?

21· · · · MR. HEROLD:· Good morning.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Morning.

23· · · · MR. HEROLD:· Thank you for having me.· This is

24· ·simply a policy that we've asked for to identify

25· ·the needs of the agents and how we would go about
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·1· ·transporting any detainees.· For the most part, our

·2· ·vehicles are not set up to transport any prisoners.

·3· · · · So essentially, the policy outlines that we

·4· ·will partner with one of our local law enforcement

·5· ·individuals to make transportation for us.

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you for the summary.

·7· · · · Commissioners.

·8· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Just a quick question, if

·9· ·I could.

10· · · · MR. HEROLD:· Certainly.

11· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So practically speaking,

12· ·do we have someone now identified, an agency that

13· ·we will call whenever our agents need

14· ·transportation around the state, or how is that

15· ·going to work practically?

16· · · · MR. HEROLD:· That's a great question.· Thank

17· ·you for the question.· Right now, every one of our

18· ·operations, we partner with a local law enforcement

19· ·because of the complexity and the multitude of

20· ·tasks that are required to do these types of

21· ·operations.

22· · · · And so we already have partnerships

23· ·established, and that's simply one more ask that we

24· ·have with local law enforcement.· And so while it's

25· ·not one particular agency that we identify.

25



Page 23
·1· ·Typically, it's with those partner agencies that

·2· ·we're working with on these operations.

·3· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So what about if we're

·4· ·going to be on our own somewhere and we make an

·5· ·arrest, one of our agents, do we have anybody

·6· ·identified yet, or is that in the planning to

·7· ·identify FHP or whatever to be our go-to agency to

·8· ·transport our prisoners for us?

·9· · · · MR. HEROLD:· Yes, sir.· So we do not have

10· ·someone that I would say or an agency that I would

11· ·say would be our go-to.· We find that as part of

12· ·the ops plan, we reach out to local law enforcement

13· ·because they do provide assistance to us, even if

14· ·it's entry or guarding the perimeter to ensure that

15· ·nobody comes in while our guys are processing

16· ·evidence and those kind of things like that.

17· · · · So the ask is to local law enforcement, and we

18· ·have utilized FHP.· And we have been offered up by

19· ·other state law enforcement agencies to give us

20· ·assistance.

21· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· I would just suggest that

22· ·we get somebody, a state agency somewhere that we

23· ·could at least forewarn them that if we do need

24· ·someone, our agents arrest someone, and we're not

25· ·working with any other local agency or anything.
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·1· · · · And I'm sure local agencies would do it from

·2· ·time to time.· But I would just suggest that we

·3· ·foreworn or at least have some type of

·4· ·understanding with whether it's FHP or the

·5· ·sheriff's departments or whoever it might be that

·6· ·they're not confused and shocked about it when we

·7· ·start asking for help transporting, that they're

·8· ·aware that it's a possibility or whatever.

·9· · · · MR. HEROLD:· Yes, sir, and thank you.· We will

10· ·make sure we do that.

11· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Thank you.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

13· ·Commissioner Drago.

14· · · · Commissioners, any further questions?

15· · · · Thank you, Chief Herold.

16· · · · All right.· We are moving on to Item No. 9.3.

17· ·Administrative Officer Mustain, anti-retaliation.

18· · · · MS. MUSTAIN:· Good morning.· This is

19· ·anti-retaliation.· This policy sets standards

20· ·prohibiting retaliation against employees who

21· ·identify workplace issues such as fraud, waste,

22· ·abuse of authority, gross mismanagement, or any

23· ·inappropriate conduct or practices, including

24· ·violations that may pose a threat to the health,

25· ·safety, and well being of our employees.
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· I don't have

·2· ·any questions.· Commissioners, do you have any?· If

·3· ·not, can we get a motion to --

·4· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Can I just ask one quick

·5· ·one, please.· So how does this interact with the

·6· ·whistleblowers' situation?· I mean, does this kind

·7· ·of piggyback off of that?· Is there a separate

·8· ·policy directing towards whistleblowers, right, and

·9· ·this piggybacks off of that?

10· · · · MS. MUSTAIN:· Yes, sir.

11· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Thank you.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· And it

13· ·delineates whistleblowing in this policy, too.

14· · · · MS. MUSTAIN:· It does.

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· And I neglected to get a

16· ·motion to approve 9.1.· So if there are no other

17· ·questions, can we get a motion to approve 9.1 and

18· ·9.3.

19· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I will make a motion

20· ·to approve 9.1 and 9.3.

21· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

22· ·Commissioner D'Aquila.

23· · · · Commissioner Repp, is there a second?

24· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

25· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Any discussion?· All those
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·1· ·in favor, say aye.

·2· · · · (Multiple ayes.)

·3· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you both for your

·4· ·work.· I know we have more policies to come, and

·5· ·looking forward to seeing them next month.· We are

·6· ·moving on to our Executive Director's update.

·7· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Hi.· Thank you.· Good morning.

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Good morning.

·9· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· I have a few things.· First, I

10· ·just point out that we as a Commission just kind of

11· ·celebrated our second year in existence.· So, you

12· ·know, internally we did a few things.· We've been

13· ·trying to celebrate and just kind of recognizing

14· ·the hard work that everybody's put in.

15· · · · Some of these accomplishments we've had, I

16· ·mean, really it's -- let me take a moment to kind

17· ·of identify some of the stuff that isn't super

18· ·obvious.· Our role coming from DBPR was to make

19· ·sure that our regulatory work kind of continued to

20· ·be up to par and do everything that it was supposed

21· ·to do.

22· · · · And I think with Joe's leadership and

23· ·everybody in PMW, we were able to do that.· I think

24· ·if you ask most of the pari-mutuels -- don't get me

25· ·wrong.· There's been hiccups, just in terms of
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·1· ·timing and just, you know, some unexpected things

·2· ·of just shifting to a Commission.

·3· · · · But I think for the most part, we've been able

·4· ·to continue to be there to license and to regulate

·5· ·the way we're supposed to, leaving the citizens in

·6· ·the state with safe gaming opportunities that

·7· ·continue to provide good revenue for the state.

·8· · · · At the same time, we were trying to create the

·9· ·law enforcement division and the support structure,

10· ·so our IT and our admin team.· So in two years, we

11· ·really have come a long way, just in terms of, you

12· ·know, Lisa's team, Suzie's team, just continuing to

13· ·really try to make little efficiencies that, again,

14· ·aren't public facing but that really do help us be

15· ·responsive to the public.

16· · · · I'm not going to name all of them.· There's

17· ·too many things.· But I do want to just recognize

18· ·some of the hard work that has gone into getting us

19· ·to where we are in two years, which is a short

20· ·amount of time.

21· · · · I mean, I'm sure the Commissioners, you know,

22· ·you've seen it.· We have come a long way, and I'm

23· ·very proud of the work we've done.· So really, it's

24· ·a good thing.· And then moving on to --

25· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Wait.· Before you move on,
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·1· ·no, no, you cannot underscore the amount of work

·2· ·and accomplishments that have gone on.· You really

·3· ·summarized it beautifully in our email to

·4· ·employees.

·5· · · · But there have been such tremendous strides.

·6· ·I mean, even effective July 1st and the Division of

·7· ·Law Enforcement, what is going on there is just

·8· ·tremendous.

·9· · · · There's great media coverage on some of the

10· ·great work that they're doing, but they're

11· ·constantly working and growing, and it's a very

12· ·exciting agency to be a part of.

13· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· And something just to add to

14· ·it, too.· The employees are very flexible, which is

15· ·something, you know, going into it that, frankly,

16· ·government is not known for being.· But I really

17· ·give a lot of credit to everybody that's been in

18· ·here and been able to adjust.

19· · · · Early on, there was a lot of how do we make

20· ·this work?· And there's been a lot of, well, let's

21· ·do this instead of that, you know, where it's not a

22· ·common thing.· Most government agencies have a long

23· ·kind of period of time where people get just used

24· ·to the routine.

25· · · · I'd like to appreciate just in general a lot
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·1· ·of the employees that have been here through this

·2· ·transition that have been able to be flexible, make

·3· ·adjustments and kind of continue to produce good

·4· ·work.· It's not an easy thing to do, and people

·5· ·have done it through difficult asks at times.

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· And

·7· ·stakeholders, too.

·8· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Yes, for sure.· With that

·9· ·said, you know, recently we've made a number of new

10· ·additions that I would like to kind of highlight

11· ·and point out.· Is Justin still here?· One of the

12· ·people here helping us get our computers working is

13· ·the new help desk person.

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Can you stand up, please.

15· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Stand up.· There he is.

16· ·Justin Garcia Vargas is our new kind of help desk

17· ·personnel.· He's come on.· He's been, you know,

18· ·super helpful.· You know, I know that for the

19· ·people that are not in Tallahassee or that are not

20· ·in Tallahassee all the time, the help desk is great

21· ·at, you know, just working with everybody, the

22· ·people that are here before our individual

23· ·meetings.

24· · · · Yesterday I had an issue, and he came over and

25· ·fixed it during his lunch break.· So really just,
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·1· ·you know, thank you there.· It's been good.· On the

·2· ·Division of Law Enforcement, there's I think two

·3· ·that are here.

·4· · · · Gary Snyder and Christina Lynn are both new

·5· ·additions.· Gary and Christina, if you don't mind

·6· ·just standing up just so that we can see you.· They

·7· ·are both reporting directly to Carl.

·8· · · · Gary is our chief of law enforcement, and

·9· ·Christina is our chief of intelligence.· So we're

10· ·looking forward to kind of what their impact that

11· ·they're going to have.· They're both good additions

12· ·immediately, but I think it's going to be a good

13· ·thing going forward.

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· We're very excited to have

15· ·you.· Great illustrious backgrounds, so we're

16· ·grateful for you all to be here.

17· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Yes.· Thank you both.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Commissioner Drago.

19· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Can I ask that perhaps we

20· ·have the Commission can step down and get a picture

21· ·with these new folks.· You know, everybody's going

22· ·to be going a million different ways from now on,

23· ·and we won't get this kind of opportunity perhaps

24· ·to do this.

25· · · · I think we should recognize the great job that
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·1· ·everybody is doing and the new people that we hire.

·2· ·I'd like to see if we could just step down as a

·3· ·Commission and get a picture with the new hires and

·4· ·come back to -- or however you want to do it.

·5· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Let's do it after the

·6· ·update.· Does that sound good?

·7· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Yes.

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· And I think that's a great

·9· ·idea.· And I know we're going to have an

10· ·opportunity to talk about our future communications

11· ·position, which I think will really bolster

12· ·internally and externally.

13· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· I think that works, whenever

14· ·you'd like.· Another I don't think she's here, but

15· ·Lerrah Clark is another one.· She's technically in

16· ·Lisa's shop, so she's in the division of admin.

17· ·She was brought in to kind of help be essentially

18· ·liaison between our Division of Law Enforcement and

19· ·the other areas.

20· · · · It's going to take a lot of work off of both

21· ·Lisa, Director Herold.· It's going to just make

22· ·easier for communication for information to flow

23· ·between our Division of Law Enforcement and both IT

24· ·and admin, so that's a big help, too.· She's been

25· ·on board and has made an impact right away, too.
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·1· · · · Moving on outside of law enforcement, so

·2· ·there's been some shuffling, all good shuffling, in

·3· ·terms of handling our reports.· So we still have

·4· ·our outward facing report portal where people can

·5· ·make reports of either illegal activity or just

·6· ·issues they're having anywhere really gambling

·7· ·related.

·8· · · · ^Cyntoria Harris was the first full-time

·9· ·position tasked with that.· She has since moved

10· ·back to licensing with a promotion.· So she was

11· ·promoted, and she now has a supervisory role in our

12· ·licensing team.

13· · · · So her background was in licensing.· She took

14· ·the opportunity to help out handling the reports

15· ·and has now moved back to licensing in a better

16· ·way.· She's been a big help.

17· · · · Again, speaking of employees that were able

18· ·to, you know, just jump on something and, you know,

19· ·take something brand-new, she was able to do it,

20· ·and I give her a lot of credit for jumping in early

21· ·and making that her own.

22· · · · We've been able to kind of move some people

23· ·around internally to replace her.· So Kim Johnson

24· ·is here.· Kim, if you don't mind standing up.· Kim

25· ·was at the front desk.· And when Cyntoria moved on,
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·1· ·Kim expressed interest.· She has since taken over

·2· ·the role of handling the complaints.

·3· · · · So if people file reports, it goes right to

·4· ·Kim.· Kim is the one on the phone talking to

·5· ·people, directing, filtering.· She's jumped in, and

·6· ·she's done a great job.· So thank you, Kim, really

·7· ·for doing that.

·8· · · · And then replacing Kim at the front desk is

·9· ·Alexis Crenshaw who is not here, I don't believe.

10· ·Alexis was an OPS position that was helping the

11· ·admin team.· When that positioned opened up, we

12· ·were able to kind of keep her and move her into

13· ·that.

14· · · · She's been helpful and done a good job there,

15· ·too.· So really just again from my end, it's great

16· ·to be able to keep people internally, even if they

17· ·move around.· It's been a good transition

18· ·throughout, so I really thank all three of them.

19· ·It's been good.

20· · · · Legal, we have some changes in legal.· Marc,

21· ·who is over here, Marc has been promoted to the

22· ·deputy general counsel.· So Marc was here, came and

23· ·has been working specifically on the law

24· ·enforcement side.

25· · · · He's been helping our law enforcement with all

36



Page 34
·1· ·their legal needs.· He's going to kind of continue

·2· ·doing that while we seek to kind of find somebody

·3· ·else to do that so he can kind of move into a

·4· ·traditional deputy general counsel role.· But right

·5· ·now, it's been a big help.

·6· · · · He's taken on a ton of work.· Elina has been

·7· ·able to take on a ton of work.· Really, our legal

·8· ·team is in a good spot.· Shireen, there she is.

·9· ·Shireen also just received a promotion.· She was a

10· ·junior attorney.· She was promoted to senior

11· ·attorney.

12· · · · Again, Shireen, super helpful.· Enjoys the

13· ·subject matter and has a lot of experience and is

14· ·very helpful.· So really, legal is in a good spot.

15· ·And then on --

16· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Congratulations everyone

17· ·for these promotions and shifting around and being

18· ·nimble.· It's awesome.

19· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· And Emily, too.· Sorry.· Emily

20· ·as well, if you see -- sometimes I forget because

21· ·she's been not in the office, just because she's

22· ·had other stuff going on.· But she's doing a ton of

23· ·work as well, even while she's been coming back.

24· · · · She recently received a promotion to a chief

25· ·attorney.· As you can see, she's still very good
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·1· ·and doing everything she's supposed to be doing.

·2· ·So, Emily, sorry, but thank you.

·3· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· We're grateful.

·4· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· On the PMW side, we also have

·5· ·a promotion.· Jose Cuevas, it's very close to

·6· ·Cuervo, Cuevas, and I have to go very slow.· Cuevas

·7· ·was promoted to a slots manager for Broward County.

·8· · · · So the way our slots team is structured is we

·9· ·have two managers, one for Broward and one for

10· ·Miami-Dade.· He was promoted to the Broward

11· ·supervisor.· He's been with us for a while.· Great

12· ·guy and does good work, so that's a good one.· He's

13· ·not here.· He's out of the Fort Lauderdale office.

14· · · · Tracy Swain, we did a little bit of a reorg.

15· ·So when Kim Ferree, who was the bureau chief for

16· ·our auditing team left, we made kind of a decision

17· ·to it's going to help better, you know, create some

18· ·efficiency.

19· · · · In our PMW team, we combined the revenue team

20· ·with the auditing team and moved Tracy in charge.

21· ·So Tracy is the bureau chief of audit and revenue.

22· ·Tracy has been with PMW for a very long time.

23· · · · She was here when I started and super helpful

24· ·from then till today, so it's a good promotion.

25· ·She is very competent, knows what she's doing.· And
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·1· ·combining these two areas made a lot of sense.· So

·2· ·with her leadership, I think we're going to be in a

·3· ·good spot there.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Great.

·5· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· And then to replace -- so

·6· ·Tracy had formally been in charge of revenue.· So

·7· ·to replace Tracy, we promoted Karen.· Karen -- I'm

·8· ·going to pronounce her last name wrong -- Stelter,

·9· ·who worked for Tracy prior in revenue.

10· · · · We moved her up, so she's now the revenue

11· ·administrator overseeing the revenue side of that

12· ·bureau.· So we're again in good hands.· So there's

13· ·a lot of moving parts.· There's been other stuff

14· ·going on that has also helped us kind of manage

15· ·just changes.

16· · · · Again, I appreciate the people I've mentioned,

17· ·but also everybody else that have been part of this

18· ·that have taken new challenges, stepped up and done

19· ·a great job.· It all adds to kind of our success in

20· ·these two years.· So thank you, everybody.· Really,

21· ·it's been very good.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Awesome.· And I think it's

23· ·also appreciative for folks in the audience here

24· ·and who are tuning in to hear about the changes so

25· ·that they know who to contact moving forward, too,

39



Page 37
·1· ·with all of these wonderful changes, too.

·2· · · · Commissioners.

·3· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Yes, just a quick thing.

·4· ·So much has been done, and I really appreciate the

·5· ·overview of everything because I think we all

·6· ·forget.· And I know people who might be watching or

·7· ·paying attention to this certainly don't realize

·8· ·all the things that go on to make this agency work.

·9· · · · I just want to say I really appreciate

10· ·everybody that's in this room and everybody that's

11· ·not in this room that participates in all this.  I

12· ·congratulate the people that got promoted, every

13· ·single one of them.

14· · · · I know that Lou keeps us advised of what's

15· ·going on, so I know that you all deserve what

16· ·you're getting and what you're doing.· I'm proud of

17· ·you.· I really do appreciate it.· It's hard to keep

18· ·up with it, with all the changes.

19· · · · It's great to be able to see this.· I have one

20· ·quick question.· Marc's position, has that been

21· ·advertised yet, that legal advisor for the law

22· ·enforcement folks?

23· · · · MR. MARSHMAN:· It has.

24· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Do you want to provide

25· ·more information?
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·1· · · · MR. MARSHMAN:· We did not receive any

·2· ·satisfactory applicants, so we are readvertising

·3· ·that position.

·4· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Readvertising.· Okay.

·5· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· What are the specific

·6· ·requirements, in terms of how many years of

·7· ·practicing law and criminal law experience,

·8· ·et cetera?

·9· · · · MR. MARSHMAN:· We can pull the ad and provide

10· ·that to the commissioners later.· But for anyone

11· ·listening that might be interested, background in

12· ·criminal law is preferred, but not required.

13· ·Background in administrative law is preferred, but

14· ·again, not required.

15· · · · If you look at our previous legal enforcement

16· ·advisor, Marc, and his career path, he's worked in

17· ·both administrative law, criminal defense, and

18· ·criminal prosecution for years.· He's a ten-year

19· ·lawyer, at least.

20· · · · And he was excellent in that position, and he

21· ·will continue to provide excellent support.· And

22· ·another attorney that can supplement Marc and

23· ·continue to assist Carl's team would be ideal.

24· · · · So having an attorney general with years of

25· ·experience under their belt would be excellent.

41



Page 39
·1· ·They would have to be willing to move to

·2· ·Tallahassee, but there's a lot of good reasons to

·3· ·move to Tallahassee.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Spoken from a Tallahassee

·5· ·guy.

·6· · · · MR. MARSHMAN:· I might be biased.· But for all

·7· ·the reasons that Director Trombetta just explained

·8· ·about the good working conditions here, we are, I

·9· ·think, an above average workplace.· And ROGC now

10· ·headed by Ms. Valentine, so is a good place to work

11· ·and a good place to hone their craft.

12· · · · And the law enforcement particularly is

13· ·unique.· There are not many law enforcement

14· ·agencies that are also administrative law agencies,

15· ·and there are not many that have statewide purview.

16· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· I agree with all of that,

17· ·and our agency is stellar.· Would it be advisable

18· ·to reach out to or at least advertise in the

19· ·Florida State Law newspaper or around there?

20· · · · I know you're looking for a more senior

21· ·attorney, but there are folks that would know

22· ·people.· And I'm going to start putting my thinking

23· ·cap on, too, based on the credentials that you

24· ·described.

25· · · · MR. MARSHMAN:· We would appreciate that and
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·1· ·any other ideas for any marketing or advertisement

·2· ·for this or any other open position we have would

·3· ·be welcome.· Thank you.

·4· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Where is it advertised,

·5· ·besides the State People First, is it advertised

·6· ·anywhere else?

·7· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· The Florida Bar?

·8· · · · MR. MARSHMAN:· I would have to check.· I don't

·9· ·know.

10· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Because I'm just

11· ·wondering how the legal advisors around the state

12· ·working for police agencies now, how they would get

13· ·the information that there's a job opening here.

14· ·So I'm not asking you to answer it now.

15· · · · I'm just suggesting that to me that would be,

16· ·I think, a pool that you'd want to get into, as

17· ·well as prosecutors' offices and public defenders'

18· ·offices and all this kind.· I don't know if they

19· ·all look at People First or not.

20· · · · But my first thought is the legal advisors

21· ·that are out there now working for local agencies

22· ·might be a good place to go.· But just to close out

23· ·my thoughts is I want to welcome all the new

24· ·people.· Thank you for joining.

25· · · · This is an exciting place to work.· As you can
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·1· ·see, there's so many things going on here.· It's

·2· ·hard to believe that it's just been two years.  I

·3· ·think back to the first days that we were here and

·4· ·can't believe where we are now, how much has been

·5· ·accomplished.

·6· · · · Director Trombetta, to you and all the members

·7· ·that work with you have done such a great job of

·8· ·getting us there.· Starting a law enforcement

·9· ·agency personally has been really exciting and

10· ·interesting to me because it just doesn't happen

11· ·very often.

12· · · · And I hope it's going to be the same way to

13· ·everyone else that's involved with it.· And that's

14· ·just not the law enforcement people.· That's the

15· ·support people that are here, like Lisa and people

16· ·that are all involved and all our lawyers and

17· ·everybody that they go to to get help in order to

18· ·make this happen.

19· · · · It's just tremendous.· I've worked at a lot of

20· ·agencies over my years, and I don't think I've ever

21· ·seen any that work so well together without anybody

22· ·trying to outdo the other one as everybody does

23· ·here, so I thank you for that.

24· · · · And the new people, you're coming into an

25· ·awesome place, awesome experience, I think.· We're
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·1· ·certainly going to pick your brains and suck

·2· ·everything out of you that we can to continue to

·3· ·grow with this, so thank you.· Thank you,

·4· ·everybody.

·5· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

·6· ·Commissioner Drago.

·7· · · · Commissioner D'Aquila.

·8· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I cannot do a better

·9· ·job than my fellow commissioner.· I ditto

10· ·everything he just said, so thank you to all.· With

11· ·regard to advertising both the legal position and

12· ·all positions, for that matter.

13· · · · When we post the advertisements, mentions of

14· ·these employment opportunities, have we developed a

15· ·standard paragraph about the gaming industry,

16· ·sports and gaming industry as it pertains

17· ·particularly to the excitement, the growth?

18· · · · It is certainly one of the most -- one of the

19· ·more exciting industries in our country as it

20· ·pertains to both the issues legally, business-wise,

21· ·changing, dynamism, so forth.

22· · · · So my question is do we do that now?· And if

23· ·we do, are we pleased with it?

24· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· So we do have stock language.

25· ·I think we can revisit how exciting it reads, but
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·1· ·your point is not lost.· I think we've tried to

·2· ·look at our advertisements and make them appealing.

·3· · · · I think there's many state agencies that don't

·4· ·try to make them appealing, let's say, where we do

·5· ·put some time into that.· But, you know, I think we

·6· ·can revisit it with what you just said and try to

·7· ·make it even more pulling.· Lisa --

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· I see Lisa shaking her head

·9· ·yes.

10· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Lisa, do you mind just talking

11· ·about the hiring process in general, just where we

12· ·advertise, how it kind of works, in general.

13· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· That would be great.

14· · · · MS. MUSTAIN:· So we advertise through People

15· ·First.· And People First, they have different

16· ·connections where they send it out.· So if you go

17· ·like, for instance, on Google and put in state of

18· ·Florida jobs, you'll get responses from several

19· ·different places.

20· · · · But it's a great idea to reach out and maybe

21· ·to the Florida Bar and ask them if they could put

22· ·the attorney positions advertisements in the Bar

23· ·News or put an email out.· We didn't think of that,

24· ·and that's a good suggestion.· Is there anything

25· ·specific?

46



Page 44
·1· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· No.· Thank you.

·2· · · · MS. MUSTAIN:· To your point,

·3· ·Commissioner D'Aquila, we could probably do a

·4· ·little better with our opening statement about the

·5· ·excitement of working at the Florida Gaming Control

·6· ·Commission, it's true.

·7· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· You might even

·8· ·consider mentioning just some of the national

·9· ·stats, the statistics using other professions.

10· ·I'll pick my own.· I have an opportunity to be a

11· ·CPA in a rapidly growing, changing environment

12· ·versus an industry that's declining, I might choose

13· ·the first one.

14· · · · So we are fortunate in that we are working in

15· ·the very -- and that's the reason we're all here,

16· ·the reason our agency and our commission is growing

17· ·so quickly.

18· · · · This is in-demand, growing national --

19· ·international phenomenon as a result of court

20· ·decisions, state and local decisions, and so forth.

21· ·Try to capture some of that in your opening

22· ·paragraph.

23· · · · I mean, we are looking for not just a person

24· ·to fill a position quite often, as we describe some

25· ·of these legal positions.· We're looking for
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·1· ·special people, and to move special people that

·2· ·little bit of extra can make a great difference.

·3· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

·4· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· And if I may add one

·5· ·more question.· I understand People First.· I've

·6· ·seen it, used it.· To our ads ever make it to some

·7· ·of the more obvious national, non-statewide sites

·8· ·such as Indeed or LinkedIn and the like?· Is that

·9· ·part of the arrangements?· I'm just curious about

10· ·that.

11· · · · MS. MUSTAIN:· Yes.

12· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I think Indeed,

13· ·LinkedIn, ZipRecruiter -- I'm not doing an

14· ·advertisement for these organizations.· I don't

15· ·know if they work or not, but I have seen them be

16· ·used quite often.

17· · · · MS. MUSTAIN:· Yes.· Typically, like I know

18· ·Suzie is really good about posting her vacant

19· ·positions on LinkedIn.· She's got a lot of good

20· ·response there.· But, yes, they do.

21· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Thank you.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· All good

23· ·suggestions.· And I think particularly

24· ·Director Herolds' position or attorneys, very

25· ·important.· And to get qualified people, we have to
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·1· ·broaden the scope.

·2· · · · That's just a critical position in your shop.

·3· ·And I think Florida Bar and any other creative ways

·4· ·to get the most qualified folks because people are

·5· ·jumping, and we are getting great employees.

·6· · · · We're very lucky.· We want to make sure we

·7· ·have that position locked.· I know we're still on

·8· ·Executive Director update.

·9· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Yes.· One other thing I wrote

10· ·down here and obviously anything else that you may

11· ·have for me, but just scheduling, just the usual.

12· ·So my notes, I have a Commission meeting agreed on

13· ·August 8th and September 5th.

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Yes.

15· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· I didn't have anything for

16· ·October, and I wasn't sure if you wanted to plan

17· ·October or November yet.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Now, October 3rd is a

19· ·holiday.· So if there's a way to be a little more

20· ·flexible with that date, instead of doing the 3rd.

21· ·And I know the following week is G2E Conference.

22· ·So I'm open for you all if you have a suggestion.

23· ·Maybe October 1st or 2nd.· The 3rd is Rosh

24· ·Hashanah.· The 1st or 2nd?

25· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Either one.
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Either one.

·2· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· I can check to see if this

·3· ·room is available either day, and I can get back to

·4· ·you on that.

·5· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· I just wanted

·6· ·to ask you a question about the status of

·7· ·rulemaking.· We have a few rules that are going on

·8· ·right now, not just the cashless wagering, but

·9· ·where we're at right now on -- and maybe it's a

10· ·question for Mr. Marshman or Ms. Valentine.

11· · · · And then I also have a HISA question or just

12· ·an update for the public, too, so those two legal

13· ·questions.

14· · · · MR. MARSHMAN:· I would defer to Ms. Stinson

15· ·for the rulemaking update and probably for the HISA

16· ·HIWU update as well.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

18· · · · MS. STINSON:· Good morning.· So for the

19· ·rulemaking update, we have our greyhound rule

20· ·update is about to -- we're about to publish the

21· ·notice of proposed rules, and that will start the

22· ·official time clock for adoption.

23· · · · We are also about to publish the notice of

24· ·proposed rule for the 75.5003, which is the

25· ·fingerprinting rule.
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Right.

·2· · · · MS. STINSON:· That, too, is about to be

·3· ·published in the FAR.· And we have the rules for

·4· ·the implementation of 804, which you granted us the

·5· ·ability to publish the notice of development.· We

·6· ·are getting that ready, and that should be coming

·7· ·soon.· And I think that's all of the rulemaking.

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Cashless wagering.

·9· · · · MS. STINSON:· Cashless wagering, we're working

10· ·on putting together the rulemaking language or the

11· ·rule language -- excuse me -- that you guys

12· ·requested at the May meeting down in South Florida,

13· ·and that should be forthcoming shortly.

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Commissioners, any

15· ·questions on rulemaking?

16· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· No.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Can you please give us an

18· ·update on the Sixth Circuit decision and how that

19· ·affects, if it affects, and the time frame for the

20· ·Supreme Court possibly to take that

21· ·unconstitutional language up.

22· · · · MS. STINSON:· Sure.· So in the Sixth Circuit,

23· ·the plaintiffs had petitioned to the U.S. Supreme

24· ·Court.· And in the last cycle, the U.S. Supreme

25· ·Court denied certiorari in that case.
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·1· · · · In the Fifth Circuit, it's a very messy topic

·2· ·right now.· So in the Fifth Circuit, the Fifth

·3· ·Circuit said that HISA had the ability to

·4· ·promulgate rules, but that those rules, they did

·5· ·not have the ability to enforce those rules.

·6· · · · And so we are right now looking into how

·7· ·that's going to affect Florida.· It is in the Fifth

·8· ·Circuit, which we're in the 11th.· So I don't think

·9· ·it's going to have an effect on us, but it is

10· ·something where the plaintiffs are, I assume, happy

11· ·with the outcome.

12· · · · But HISSA, I'm going to assume, is going to

13· ·petition the United States Supreme Court for a

14· ·review.

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

16· · · · Commissioners, any questions on that?· All

17· ·right.

18· · · · Are there any other matters to take up before

19· ·we conclude the meeting?

20· · · · Sorry.· Mr. Trombetta.

21· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Again, credit to Dixie Parker.

22· ·This room is available October 2nd.

23· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· It sounds like October 2nd

24· ·is going to be our October regular Commission

25· ·meeting.· I have no speaker cards from the public
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·1· ·right now.

·2· · · · If there's anybody in the public in the

·3· ·audience that would like to come up, now is your

·4· ·chance.

·5· · · · Seeing none, Commissioners, are there any

·6· ·other matters to address?· Seeing none, then we are

·7· ·adjourned.· Have a good July, everyone.· See you

·8· ·soon.· Thank you.

·9· · · ·(Proceedings concluded at 10:19 a.m.)
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·1· · · · ·Proceedings began at 9:35 a.m.

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All right.· Good morning.

·3· ·Today is August 8.· This is the Florida Gaming

·4· ·Control Commission meeting and the time is 9:30.

·5· ·If you would, please stand and rise for the Pledge

·6· ·of Allegiance.

·7· · · · (Pledge of Allegiance)

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you so much.· I hope

·9· ·everyone is doing okay from the hurricane and

10· ·everyone here has power and happy to see you all

11· ·here today.

12· · · · Also -- first I also want to welcome -- we

13· ·have a new communications director, Katie Young,

14· ·who will be given an opportunity under the

15· ·executive director's report to be introduced and

16· ·we're very excited to have you and she's with us

17· ·here with us today, so welcome, Katie.

18· · · · All right.· We are going to go right into our

19· ·meeting today with -- and we're going to start with

20· ·the approval of the meeting minutes from June 6,

21· ·2024.

22· · · · Can I please get a motion to approve?

23· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

25· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· All those in

·2· ·favor say aye.

·3· · · · (Aye responses)

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· We are going

·5· ·into the discussion of the amended applications for

·6· ·pari-mutuel operating licenses.· We have two, 2.1

·7· ·and 2.2.

·8· · · · Good morning.

·9· · · · MS. POUNCEY:· Good morning.· Jamie Pouncey for

10· ·the record.

11· · · · The first is Item Number 2.1, Case Number

12· ·2024-037855.· It is an application from West

13· ·Flagler Associates doing business as Edgewater

14· ·Jai-Alai.· They have requested to amend their

15· ·operating license by adding two Jai-Alai

16· ·performances on December 2nd and 3rd and deleting

17· ·one performance on December 13 for a total of 40

18· ·performances.· They have submitted the required

19· ·information and the Division recommends approval.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Commissioners,

21· ·seeing no objection, can we get a motion to approve

22· ·this item?

23· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I'll make that motion.

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

25· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.

·2· · · · (Aye responses)

·3· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· And I'm excited

·4· ·to see these two continuing Jai-Alai.

·5· · · · MS. POUNCEY:· Item Number 2.2 is RB Jai-Alai

·6· ·doing business as Orlando Live Events.· They have

·7· ·submitted an application to amend their license by

·8· ·canceling their performances July 22nd and

·9· ·July 26th and adding their performances

10· ·September 23rd and 27th.

11· · · · They have submitted the required documentation

12· ·and we are requesting that this amendment be

13· ·approved effective July 22nd.

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Pouncey.

15· · · · Seeing no objection can we get a motion to

16· ·approve the application?

17· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

19· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.

21· · · · (Aye responses)

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you again.· We are

23· ·going to take up Items 3.1 through 3.12 together.

24· ·This is a discussion of application for transfer of

25· ·permitholder tax credit/exemptions, really just
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·1· ·request to transfer the tax credits and I thought

·2· ·it would be more efficient to take them up as a

·3· ·whole.

·4· · · · MS. STELTER:· Okay.

·5· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Good morning.

·6· · · · MS. STELTER:· Do I need to read each case

·7· ·individually, though?

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· You can just highlight -- I

·9· ·would just say 3.1 through 3.12 as reflected on the

10· ·agenda.

11· · · · MS. STELTER:· Okay.· Then 3.1 through 3.12 as

12· ·reflected on the agenda, these permitholders have

13· ·requested a one-time full or partial transfer of

14· ·their tax credits to Daytona Beach Kennel Club

15· ·(inaudible).

16· · · · All have met their statutory requirements for

17· ·their request and, therefore, approval is -- is

18· ·recommended effective August the 1st of 2024.

19· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Commissioners,

20· ·again, the reason why I said this is Section

21· ·551.0951(1)(b) of the Florida Statute outlines the

22· ·requirement for transfer.· All of these

23· ·permitholders have met those and I thought it would

24· ·be appropriate to take them up as a whole.

25· · · · If any of you have questions on any of the
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·1· ·items, if not, can we get a motion to approve the

·2· ·applications from 3.1 through 3.12.

·3· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I make a motion to

·4· ·approve the applications from 3.1 through 3.12 with

·5· ·regard to tax credit transfer.

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

·7· ·Commissioner D'Aquila.

·8· · · · Is there a second?

·9· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

10· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

11· ·Commissioner Repp.

12· · · · All those in favor say aye.

13· · · · (Aye responses)

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Appreciate it.

15· ·We're going into discussion of our final orders --

16· ·default final orders, 4.1 and 4.2.

17· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Good morning.· Emily Alvarado

18· ·for the record.

19· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Emily -- yeah.

20· ·Ms. Alvarado.

21· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· I'll move closer.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Good morning.

23· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Good morning.· Item 4.1 is

24· ·2023-045555, Sarah Sechel.· In this case you were

25· ·provided a two count administrative complaint
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·1· ·alleging that the respondent was convicted of one

·2· ·felony offense and failed to notify the Commission

·3· ·of her conviction.· She's subject to revocation of

·4· ·her pari-mutuel wagering general individual

·5· ·occupational license.· You were also provided a

·6· ·hand service affidavit.· Respondent failed to

·7· ·respond.

·8· · · · Therefore, the Division would ask that the

·9· ·Commission enter an order finding that respondent

10· ·was properly served, they failed to respond within

11· ·21 days, that the facts in the administrative

12· ·complaint are the facts in the case, and concluding

13· ·that the licensee's occupation license shall be

14· ·revoked.

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Alvarado.

16· · · · Commissioners, do you have any questions on

17· ·this item?

18· · · · Commissioner Drago, can I get a motion to

19· ·approve the final order?

20· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· I make a motion to

21· ·approve the final order.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

23· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· All those in

25· ·favor say aye.
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·1· · · · (Aye responses)

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· 4.1 passes.

·3· ·4.2, please.

·4· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 4.2 is 2024-002260,

·5· ·Jack Towell.· In this case you were provided a one

·6· ·count administrative complaint seeking to suspend

·7· ·respondent's pari-mutuel wagering professional

·8· ·individual occupational license due to an

·9· ·outstanding debt related to horseracing, pursuant

10· ·to Section 550.1057.· You were also provided the

11· ·USPS tracking that showed that they were served

12· ·with this.· The respondent failed to respond.

13· · · · Therefore, the Commission would ask that they

14· ·find -- they enter a final order finding that

15· ·respondent was properly served with the

16· ·administrative complaint, that they failed to

17· ·respond within 21 days, that the facts in the

18· ·administrative complaint are the facts in this

19· ·case, and concluding that respondent's occupation

20· ·license is suspended until we receive proof of

21· ·payment.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Alvarado,

23· ·that seems very fair.

24· · · · Commissioners, any questions?· Okay.· Can we

25· ·get a motion to approve?
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·1· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I'll make that motion.

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

·3· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I'll make a second.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.

·5· · · · (Aye responses)

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· We are going

·7· ·into discussion of consent orders, Items 5.1

·8· ·through 5.3.

·9· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 5.1 is 2023-019843, South

10· ·Marion Real Estate Holdings.· In this case you were

11· ·provided a one count administrative complaint

12· ·alleging that respondent violated Section

13· ·849.086(6)(c) by allowing a massage therapist to

14· ·work on the floor of a cardroom without a valid

15· ·pari-mutuel occupational license.

16· · · · They had no prior violations of this statute.

17· ·The Commission has authority to issue up to a

18· ·thousand dollar fine in this case.· The respondent

19· ·has sent back a signed settlement consent order

20· ·with a $250 fine.

21· · · · Here the Division would ask that the

22· ·Commission enter an order adopting the settlement

23· ·and consent order in this case.

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Alvarado.

25· ·If there are no questions on this, can we get a
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·1· ·motion to approve the stipulation and consent order

·2· ·on this item?

·3· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

·5· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Any discussion?· All those

·7· ·in favor say aye.

·8· · · · (Aye responses)

·9· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· The item passes.· Just one

10· ·second.

11· · · · (Pause)

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Ms. Alvarado, we have 5.2,

13· ·which contains two cases.

14· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 5.2 is 2024-003066 and

15· ·2024-005418, Tampa Bay Downs.· In this case you

16· ·were provided a filed administrative complaint

17· ·alleging that respondent violated Rule 7511.0192

18· ·and 7511.0128 by failing to follow the internal

19· ·controls approved by the Division, by failing to

20· ·have an inventory sheet issued at the table at the

21· ·time of closing, and allowing unauthorized employee

22· ·to enter the surveillance room.

23· · · · Here the respondent has three prior violations

24· ·of Rule 7511.0128 and one prior violation of Rule

25· ·7511.0192.· The respondent has sent back a signed
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·1· ·settlement and consent order in this case with

·2· ·$1,750 fine.· The Division would ask that you adopt

·3· ·the settlement and consent order in this case.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Commissioners,

·5· ·any questions or comments on this item?· If not can

·6· ·we get a motion to approve the stipulation and

·7· ·consent order on the two items in 5.2?

·8· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I'll make that motion.

·9· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

10· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I will second that

11· ·motion.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· All those in

13· ·favor say aye.

14· · · · (Aye responses)

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All right.· And we are

16· ·moving on to 5.3.

17· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 5.3 is 2024-025407, Tampa Bay

18· ·Downs.· This case there was a filed administrative

19· ·complaint alleging that respondent violated

20· ·Rule 7511.014(4)(c) and 7511.02 -- 020(1)(b) by

21· ·failing to permanently alter a card removed from

22· ·play and failing to have a drop box affixed with a

23· ·lock to a poker table.

24· · · · The respondent has three prior violations of

25· ·7511.014(4)(c) and six prior violations of

67



Page 13
·1· ·7511.020(1)(b).· The respondent has sent back a

·2· ·signed settlement and consent order in this case

·3· ·with $1,500.· Therefore, the Division would ask

·4· ·that the Commission enter an order adopting this

·5· ·consent order.

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· And I know the

·7· ·facts of each of these cases vary and now that we

·8· ·have a Gaming Control Commission we can be more

·9· ·consistent based on the, you know, the amount of

10· ·priors and things of that nature.

11· · · · Just looking at the past cases, they varied so

12· ·much.· So I hope that we continue to be more

13· ·consistent when we enter into these stipulation and

14· ·consent orders.

15· · · · Commissioners, are there any other comments or

16· ·questions on this?· We're ripe for a motion to

17· ·approve.

18· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

19· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

20· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I second.

21· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.

22· · · · (Aye responses)

23· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· And now we're

24· ·moving on to the discussion of recommended orders,

25· ·6.1 through 6.3, Ms. Alvarado.
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·1· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 6.1 is 2022-037047, Alejandro

·2· ·Toledo-Rincon.· In this case there was a

·3· ·recommended order that was issued by the hearing

·4· ·officer.· An informal hearing was held on May 16,

·5· ·2024, regarding an administrative complaint seeking

·6· ·to exclude respondent from all pari-mutuel and slot

·7· ·machine facilities pursuant to Section 550.0251(6)

·8· ·and 551.112 Florida Statutes.

·9· · · · The hearing officer issued the recommended

10· ·order on July 31st, 2024, recommending that

11· ·respondent be added to the permanent exclusion list

12· ·for all pari-mutuel and slot machine facilities.

13· ·Therefore, the Division would ask that we adopt the

14· ·hearing officer's recommended order and add

15· ·respondent to the permanent exclusion list.

16· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Alvarado.

17· · · · These facts are pretty straightforward.· If

18· ·there are no questions can we get a motion to

19· ·approve the final order adopting the hearing

20· ·order's -- officer's recommendation?

21· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I'll make that motion.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Is there a

23· ·second?

24· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Second.

25· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.
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·1· · · · (Aye responses)

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· 6.2, please.

·3· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 6.2 is 2023-058353,

·4· ·Jorge Wagner this case comes before you following

·5· ·the recommended order that was issued by the

·6· ·hearing officer.· An informal hearing was conducted

·7· ·on May 16, 2024, regarding an administrative

·8· ·complaint seeking to suspend respondent's license

·9· ·due to an unpaid financial obligation regarding

10· ·horse racing provided at a -- on the grounds of a

11· ·pari-mutuel facility.

12· · · · The hearing officer issued a recommended order

13· ·on July 31st, 2024, recommending that the

14· ·Commission suspend respondent's pari-mutuel

15· ·individual occupational license until the

16· ·Commission is provided proof that the unpaid

17· ·financial obligation is satisfied or otherwise

18· ·settled to satisfaction of the debt holder with

19· ·proof of such satisfaction received by the

20· ·Commission.

21· · · · Therefore, the Division would ask that you

22· ·adopt this recommendation by the hearing officer.

23· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Commissioners,

24· ·any questions on this item?· If not can we get a

25· ·motion to approve adopting the hearing officer's
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·1· ·recommended order?

·2· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I will make a motion

·3· ·to approve the hearing officer's recommended order.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

·5· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.

·7· · · · (Aye responses)

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· And lastly 6.3.

·9· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 6.3 is 2023-060611,

10· ·Lori-Ayn Mennilli.· This case came before you

11· ·following the recommended order by the hearing

12· ·officer.· An informal hearing was conducted on

13· ·May 16th regarding a letter of license denial that

14· ·was issued to Ms. -- Ms. Mennilli seeking to deny

15· ·her application for a cardroom employee

16· ·occupational license due to her misdemeanor

17· ·conviction.

18· · · · The hearing officer issued a recommended order

19· ·on July 31st, 2024, recommending that the

20· ·Commission deny her application.· Here the Division

21· ·would ask that you adopt the hearing officer's

22· ·recommended order, specifically the finding of

23· ·facts and the conclusion of law set out in

24· ·paragraphs 11 through 23, 25, and 26 of the hearing

25· ·officer's recommended order and deny the
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·1· ·petitioner's cardroom occupation.

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Hearing

·3· ·officers are pretty busy July 31st.

·4· · · · Commissioners, are there any questions on this

·5· ·item?· The motion will have to be very specific

·6· ·regarding adopting all findings of fact and

·7· ·conclusions of law set out in paragraphs 11 through

·8· ·23, 25, and 26 of the hearing officer's recommended

·9· ·order.

10· · · · And if have you no questions, that would be

11· ·the motion.

12· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

13· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

14· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.

16· · · · (Aye responses)

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Alvarado.

18· · · · We have one item under discussion of request

19· ·for waiver, 7.1.

20· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 7.1 is 2024-032787,

21· ·Eddie Carbajo.· Here the applicant applied for a

22· ·slot machine, cardroom, pari-mutuel individual

23· ·combination occupational license.· Upon review of

24· ·the application it was discovered that he had

25· ·disqualifying misdemeanors, petty theft.
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·1· · · · The applicant failed to list this misdemeanor

·2· ·on their application and after that the applicant

·3· ·sought a waiver of the misdemeanor offense and

·4· ·issuance of his slot machine, cardroom, pari-mutuel

·5· ·individual combination occupational license.· The

·6· ·waiver interview was conducted on June 14 and it

·7· ·was documated -- documented in the meeting

·8· ·materials.

·9· · · · Section 550.105(5)(c) allows the Commission to

10· ·waive disqualifying offenses.· So here the

11· ·Commission can decide to either review -- after

12· ·reviewing materials grant the waiver and issue the

13· ·slot machine license, slot machine combination

14· ·license, or if not we would ask that you deny the

15· ·waiver and we can issue a notice of intent denying

16· ·this case.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Okay.· Thank you.

18· ·Commissioners, this case is extremely old that

19· ·there's not even -- very little evidence on the

20· ·arrest other than the affidavit that's in there.

21· ·There's a 1998 case.· There's also -- there's a '97

22· ·and a '98 case.· I just want to confirm, are they

23· ·the same?

24· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Yes, they were the same.

25· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· So there's only one
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·1· ·offense -- there's one offense?

·2· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Just one offense.

·3· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All right.· And this

·4· ·individual is applying to be security guard?

·5· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Yes.

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All right.· Commissioners,

·7· ·do you have any questions or comments?

·8· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· I would if I could.· As

·9· ·we review this there isn't -- there isn't a lot of

10· ·information going back that far as we can see, but

11· ·since 1997 I believe he was arrested and '98 I

12· ·think is when it was disposed of.

13· · · · So it's -- it's -- during that period of time

14· ·till now doesn't appear to be any other offenses

15· ·that I can see in there that would cause us to deny

16· ·a license and not waiver the one offense that he

17· ·has.

18· · · · It would appear to me that he has been

19· ·rehabilitated to the point where he's not

20· ·committing any more criminal offenses, and the

21· ·original offense was petty larceny less than $300

22· ·as I recall, license tag.

23· · · · So based on that I think that we should

24· ·consider the fact that it appears that he has met

25· ·the requirements to be -- to be rehabilitated by
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·1· ·this point and I don't really see any reason why we

·2· ·wouldn't want to waive it at this time, especially

·3· ·since it's such a -- such a minor offense at the

·4· ·time.

·5· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

·6· ·Commissioner Drago.

·7· · · · I would just add also that his fine of $138

·8· ·has been paid and the case has been disposed of, of

·9· ·course, after the amount of time that's lapsed.

10· · · · Commissioners, any other questions or

11· ·comments?

12· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· No.

13· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· If not I guess we are right

14· ·to make a motion to grant the waiver.

15· · · · Is that correct?

16· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· And issue the license to the

17· ·applicant.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

19· ·Commissioner Drago, you ready to make a motion?

20· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· I do make that motion,

21· ·yes.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

23· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Any discussion?· All those

25· ·in favor say aye.
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·1· · · · (Aye responses)

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· We are moving

·3· ·on to license denials, 8.1.

·4· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 8.1, 2024-036099,

·5· ·Diane McCalla.· The Division of Pari-Mutuel

·6· ·received a license application from the applicant

·7· ·on May 20th, 2024.· The applicant is seeking a slot

·8· ·machine general occupational license.

·9· · · · After review of her application, it was

10· ·discovered that she was convicted of a felony

11· ·offense, specifically driving with a revoked

12· ·license as an habitual offender in 2023.

13· · · · She did disclose this on her application.· The

14· ·applicant did -- did not apply for a waiver of

15· ·felony offense, because it is not -- it's not

16· ·authorized under 551.107(6)(a).· Therefore, the

17· ·Division would ask that the Commission authorize

18· ·the issuance of a notice of intent to deny in this

19· ·case.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Commissioners,

21· ·any question?

22· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I have a question.

23· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Commissioner D'Aquila.

24· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I see the charge

25· ·habitual offender.· There are multiple instances?
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·1· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· She had multiple suspensions of

·2· ·her license prior to this, driving on suspended

·3· ·license as well.

·4· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Is my understanding

·5· ·correct there were three?

·6· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Yes.

·7· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Okay.

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· And this applicant is

·9· ·applying to be a cook; is that correct?

10· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Yes.

11· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Okay.· I looked in the file

12· ·too and it did show after the applicant disclosed

13· ·those, there were additional charges.· I guess -- I

14· ·don't think that they resulted -- it shows battery

15· ·with deadly weapon with -- without intent to kill.

16· ·Several items are in the report as well, but they

17· ·were not listed on her application.

18· · · · It did not -- her application otherwise did

19· ·not give me pause to approve.· However, when I

20· ·noticed those items and they weren't disclosed, it

21· ·kind of set off some -- some alarm bells.· It's on

22· ·page 9 of 13.

23· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· So that -- that actually was

24· ·dropped, so that's why it was not listed on her

25· ·application.· She was not convicted of that
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·1· ·offense.

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· So she didn't have to

·3· ·disclose it even on her -- on the --

·4· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· No.· It's -- if it was not a

·5· ·conviction, you don't have to disclose it on your

·6· ·application.

·7· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Commissioners, any comments

·8· ·or questions?

·9· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Just thinking out loud I

10· ·guess with everybody and just considering the

11· ·offense were all traffic offenses, all three of

12· ·them -- serious traffic offenses, but -- but

13· ·traffic offenses, I'm not sure that -- and that was

14· ·2018, correct, Ms. Alvarado?

15· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· So the -- the -- the last

16· ·offense was convicted in 2023.· It was a

17· ·conviction.

18· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Well, then she's

19· ·convicted in 2023, when was the offense, was it

20· ·2018?

21· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· She had two -- so it's two

22· ·priors that she listed.· Actually one was in 2013,

23· ·one was in 2018, and she was convicted in 2023, the

24· ·last one.· So there was two misdemeanors and one

25· ·felony.
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·1· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· All right.· There's been

·2· ·no other offenses since, there's never been any

·3· ·convictions for larceny or any -- any crimes like

·4· ·that that might interfere with her job in -- in

·5· ·casino.

·6· · · · I don't know that traffic -- traffic offenses

·7· ·is something that we would want to keep somebody

·8· ·out of a job like -- like working in a kitchen,

·9· ·whether that's going to put any -- put the people

10· ·of the State of Florida in any kind of danger or

11· ·compromising situation.

12· · · · She shouldn't be -- she's not driving.· She's

13· ·not going to be driving delivery truck for them or

14· ·anything like that.· I guess they don't require her

15· ·to have a license I would -- I would guess to work

16· ·there.

17· · · · So I would like to consider -- or at least for

18· ·the Commission to consider anyway allowing her to

19· ·get a license and not based on what we see here and

20· ·what -- on her history.

21· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Sure, Commissioner Drago.

22· · · · Commissioner D'Aquila.

23· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· The only thing I would

24· ·add to that I had a very similar reaction until I

25· ·saw the habitual nature of the violation, and I do
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·1· ·agree with you, Commissioner Drago, that it is a

·2· ·traffic violation and so forth, but -- and I think

·3· ·there is also a reason why we have licensing

·4· ·requirements, safety on the roads and it is the law

·5· ·and I'm getting hung up with this habitual nature.

·6· ·Three instances within approximately six years, if

·7· ·my math is correct, give me some reason for

·8· ·concern.

·9· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Yes, Commissioner Repp.

10· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I'm going to -- I'll agree

11· ·with Commissioner Drago and I -- I don't see a

12· ·threat to casino patrons and to deny it.· And

13· ·unlike other applicants, I do appreciate the fact

14· ·that she disclosed this and -- and has taken

15· ·ownership of this issue.· And considering what

16· ·she's applying for, I would be inclined to allow

17· ·the license.

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· And just to wrap it up,

19· ·that's where I was until I saw the additional

20· ·offenses, but I'm happy to see that those were

21· ·dropped and I -- I think Commissioner Drago summed

22· ·it up very well in that I don't think she's a

23· ·threat to the industry, the people, and the

24· ·position that she's applying for as a cook in the

25· ·casino, so I would also be inclined to grant her
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·1· ·the license.

·2· · · · So if this Commission is ready to make a

·3· ·motion, the appropriate thing would be to -- to

·4· ·recommend that the issuance of a license, rather

·5· ·than a license denial; correct?

·6· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· Right.

·7· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Okay.· Commissioners, can

·8· ·we get a motion to issue the license -- a license

·9· ·to this applicant?

10· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I'll make that motion.

11· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

12· ·Commissioner Repp.

13· · · · Is there a second?

14· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Second.

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Any further discussion?

16· ·All those in favor say aye.

17· · · · (Aye responses)

18· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All right.· Thank you.· We

19· ·are moving on to Item 9, discussion of final

20· ·orders.· We have two of them, pursuant to request

21· ·from the respondents, 9.1.

22· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 9.1 is 2023-063223,

23· ·Luisa Perez.· In this case you were provided an

24· ·administrative complaint alleging that respondent

25· ·was convicted of the felony offense and failed to
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·1· ·notify the conviction -- the Commission of the

·2· ·conviction or arrest.· She's, therefore, subject to

·3· ·revocation of her slot machine, cardroom,

·4· ·pari-mutual wagering combination occupational

·5· ·license pursuant to 550.1055(b), 550.1107(6)(a),

·6· ·849.086(6)(f), and Rule 7511.011.

·7· · · · Respondent has submitted an election of rights

·8· ·requesting that the Commission enter a final order

·9· ·imposing a penalty in this case.· Therefore, the

10· ·Division would ask the Commission enter an order

11· ·revoking her license.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Ms. Alvarado.

13· · · · I enthusiastically agree with the

14· ·recommendation and the analysis for this particular

15· ·item.· Commissioners, any questions or comments?

16· ·If not can we get a motion to enter a final order

17· ·revoking respondent's occupational license?

18· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I'll make a motion to

19· ·that effect.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

21· ·Commissioner D'Aquila.

22· · · · Is there a second?

23· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.

25· · · · (Aye responses)
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· And we're

·2· ·moving on to 9.2.

·3· · · · MS. ALVARADO:· 9.2 is 2023-068833,

·4· ·Armando Pernas.· In this case you were provided

·5· ·administrative complaint alleging that respondent

·6· ·was excluded from Casino Miami.· He's subject to

·7· ·exclusion from all pari-mutual and slot machine

·8· ·facilities Pursuant to 550.0251(6) and 551.112

·9· ·Florida Statutes.

10· · · · The respondent submitted an election of rights

11· ·in this case asking the Commission to enter a final

12· ·order imposing a penalty in this case.· Therefore,

13· ·the Commission would ask -- the Division would ask

14· ·the Commission to enter an order adding respondent

15· ·to the permanent exclusion list for all pari-mutuel

16· ·and slot machine facilities.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is it correct that this

18· ·applicant -- this petitioner won 395 jackpots while

19· ·he was already on the permanent exclusion list?

20·   · MS ALVARADO:· That's what it says in the

21· ·report, yes.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Wow.· Commissioners, any

23· ·comments or questions?· If not can we get a motion

24· ·approve the final order permanently excluding the

25· ·respondent.
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·1· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Is there a second?

·3· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· Second.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· All those in favor say aye.

·5· · · · (Aye responses)

·6· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

·7· · · · Thank you, Ms. Alvarado.

·8· · · · Mr. Taupier.· We're talking about rulemaking,

·9· ·10.1.

10· · · · MS. VALENTINE:· It's me.· I'm over here.

11· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· You're hiding.

12· · · · MS. VALENTINE:· Closer to the Commissioners.

13· · · · Item 10.1 relates to the final adoption of the

14· ·proposed Rule 75-5.003, which is being amended to

15· ·clarify the exemptions from the fingerprinting

16· ·requirements.

17· · · · At the June 6th Commission meeting, the

18· ·Commissioners voted to approve the language of the

19· ·proposed rule.· No subsequent changes have been

20· ·made to the approved proposed language.

21· · · · On June 10th the language of the proposed rule

22· ·was noticed by publication in the Florida

23· ·Administrative Register.· The Commission did not

24· ·receive any requests for a public hearing.

25· · · · The requisite time has now passed from the
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·1· ·date of publication of the notice and the rule is

·2· ·ready to be filed with the Department of State for

·3· ·final adoption.

·4· · · · In that regard Commission staff requests

·5· ·approval to file with the Department of State the

·6· ·proposed Rule 75-5.003 and all other documents

·7· ·required by law.· Those documents are in the

·8· ·meeting materials.

·9· · · · In addition, Commission staff requests that

10· ·the Commissioners authorize Lou Trombetta the

11· ·Executive Director to execute on behalf of the

12· ·Commissioners' certifications that the Commission

13· ·is in compliance with the statutory and rule

14· ·requirements applicable to rulemaking.· These

15· ·certifications are also included in the meeting

16· ·materials.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Commissioners,

18· ·any questions?

19· · · · Happy to see this rule come to a final

20· ·conclusion here.· So I guess the motion would be to

21· ·approve and file with the Department of State for

22· ·final adoption Rule 75-5.003 Florida Administrative

23· ·Code and as well as authorize our executive

24· ·director, Mr. Trombetta, to file all appropriate

25· ·certificates?
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·1· · · · (Talkover)

·2· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Sorry, yes?

·3· · · · MS. VALENTINE:· Yes.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Certifications, and any

·5· ·other documents as required by law?

·6· · · · MS. VALENTINE:· Yes.

·7· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Commissioner Drago.

·8· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· So moved.

·9· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Yes.· Second?· Any

10· ·discussion?

11· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· Second.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Awesome.· Thank you.· All

13· ·those in favor say aye.

14· · · · (Aye responses)

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Thanks again

16· ·for your hard work on this.

17· · · · We are moving on to a discussion of Equitable

18· ·Sharing Program of the Federal Asset Forfeiture

19· ·Program.

20· · · · MR. TAUPIER:· Good morning, Commissioners.

21· ·Marc Taupier for the record.· Just going to give

22· ·you a brief overview of what the program actually

23· ·is and what our request is going to be.

24· · · · So as you may know Florida and many states

25· ·have laws that allow agencies, specifically law
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·1· ·enforcement agencies, to seize for forfeiture

·2· ·property, that could be tangible or real property,

·3· ·if it's considered contraband and used in the

·4· ·commission of a crime.

·5· · · · The federal government does have laws

·6· ·regarding that and the question becomes what

·7· ·happens when state, local, or tribal law

·8· ·enforcement officers work with the federal

·9· ·government who gets the money.

10· · · · So federal law actually authorizes the

11· ·Attorney General and the Secretary of Treasury to

12· ·share those federally forfeited assets, currency,

13· ·real property.· And what they have done is they set

14· ·up what is called the Equitable Sharing Program.

15· · · · So the Department of Justice manages their own

16· ·forfeiture fund through their own program, so does

17· ·the Treasury, and there's a lot of agencies that

18· ·fall under the DOJ and the Treasury.

19· · · · So depending on when law enforcement works

20· ·with a certain agency, there's going to be certain

21· ·requirements either under Treasury or under the

22· ·Department of Justice, but first we have to be a

23· ·participating partner.

24· · · · And with that in order to become a

25· ·participating partner, we have to file what's
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·1· ·called an ESAC, an Equitable Sharing Agreement and

·2· ·Certification form.· We have to do this initially

·3· ·to become a participating partner, we have to do

·4· ·this annually to be in good standing.

·5· · · · If our agents do work with federal agencies,

·6· ·there are going to be forms where they will have to

·7· ·be filled out with signatory authority to claim

·8· ·some of those proceeds by the agency head and by

·9· ·the director of law enforcement.

10· · · · So the ask of the Commission is to authorize

11· ·the Executive Director, Lou Trombetta and the

12· ·Director of Gaming Enforcement, Carl Herold to

13· ·complete and execute all required and necessary

14· ·documents to participate in that Equitable Sharing

15· ·Program of the Federal Asset Forfeiture programs.

16· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Excellent.· Thank you.

17· · · · Commissioners, Commissioner Drago.

18· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Yeah.· Just a couple of

19· ·quick questions.· I know from being involved in

20· ·this in the past myself that there are also certain

21· ·criteria for using that money, which differs a

22· ·little bit from the State in terms of when you can

23· ·use it and not use it.· I think in some ways the

24· ·federal government is a little bit easier on --

25· ·more lenient on what you can spend it on, more
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·1· ·vague so to speak.

·2· · · · So I think it's a great program that we should

·3· ·definitely be involved with.· We -- we can work

·4· ·with federal agencies and -- and share in the

·5· ·forfeiture and use it for very good purposes for

·6· ·the agency, for the people of the State of Florida,

·7· ·for helping people with various problems, gambling,

·8· ·drugs, et cetera, as well as equipment and -- and

·9· ·staffing at times as long as you're not

10· ·supplementing -- supplanting them.· So I think it's

11· ·a great -- great asset for the agency to have and

12· ·minimal requirements to be -- become a part of it,

13· ·and so I appreciate you taking care of this and

14· ·getting on this and I look forward to being

15· ·involved with it in the future for sure.

16· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Commissioners.· And there

17· ·are other state agencies that you are I guess

18· ·participating partners as well under this program?

19· · · · MR. TAUPIER:· Absolutely, yes, there are.

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· I think it's a great --

21· ·thank you for doing a great deal of research on it.

22· ·I know that we can definitely take advantage of it

23· ·and if there's anything else that we need to do --

24· ·authorize Mr. Trombetta, I'm sure we are inclined

25· ·to do that.
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·1· · · · Commissioners, do we need an actual -- do we

·2· ·need an actual motion?

·3· · · · MR. TAUPIER:· We do.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Okay.· Commissioner Repp,

·5· ·how about you make a motion here.

·6· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I'll make that motion.

·7· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· And is there a

·8· ·second?

·9· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Second.

10· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· And the clarification of

11· ·the motion is just to authorize Mr. Trombetta to --

12· · · · MR. TAUPIER:· And the Director.

13· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· The director?

14· · · · MR. TAUPIER:· Carl Herold.

15· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· And of course.

16· · · · MR. TAUPIER:· Both of them.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Both of them to I guess

18· ·apply to this ESAC.

19· · · · MR. TAUPIER:· Apply and submit any necessary

20· ·paperwork to remain in the program or to submit

21· ·paperwork when forfeiting.

22· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Sounds like that was

23· ·Commissioner Repp's motion.

24· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· It was indeed.

25· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Yes.· And his second.
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·1· ·Thank you.· All those -- all those in favor say

·2· ·aye.

·3· · · · (Aye responses)

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.· Thank you.

·5· ·Okay.· We are moving on to our executive director

·6· ·update.

·7· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· I'll try to -- all right.

·8· ·Thank you.· Good morning.

·9· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Good morning.

10· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· I'm going to try to split mine

11· ·into sort of two parts and I'll start -- I want to

12· ·turn it over to Director Herold to -- early on to

13· ·let him give you an overview of what sort of law

14· ·enforcement team is working on this month.

15· · · · I also want to recognize and kind of give a

16· ·public pat on the back to Taylor County Sheriff's

17· ·Office and the Volusha County Sheriff's Office.

18· · · · In the past month they both completed

19· ·operations to, you know, go after illegal slot

20· ·machine businesses that are operating within those

21· ·counties.

22· · · · So the -- I mean, Director Herold can give you

23· ·more information, but Volusha County involved, you

24· ·know, I think a lot of different businesses and,

25· ·you know, over a hundred machines.· Taylor County
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·1· ·was a smaller operation, but just from the

·2· ·Commission -- from the Commission standpoint, from

·3· ·the Commissioners, to me it's a great example of

·4· ·the work we're doing getting out there where other,

·5· ·you know, sheriffs around the state are taking

·6· ·interest in this activity, which is something that

·7· ·wasn't happening two years ago.

·8· · · · So -- so really I think from the leadership

·9· ·from you all, from the work that has been done by

10· ·staff through -- through Carl's outreach and kind

11· ·of just the activity that -- the actions that we've

12· ·already taken I think we are setting example that

13· ·it is possible to make a difference in this area

14· ·and it's nice to see other -- other sheriff's

15· ·offices kind of also doing -- doing their part

16· ·really.· I mean, it's good.· This is a good step.

17· · · · With that, Carl, do you mind kind of giving an

18· ·overview of -- of sort of how thing's been going

19· ·last month?

20· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· It almost demands applause

21· ·really, because it's -- it has been a monumental

22· ·task that Carl's team has done.

23· · · · (Applause)

24· · · · MR. HEROLD:· Good morning.· Carl Herold for

25· ·the record.· Thank you, Madam Vice Chair, and

92



Page 38
·1· ·Commissioners.

·2· · · · So, you know, just to kind of add on what Lou

·3· ·said, you know, the goal in law enforcement was to

·4· ·have successes in -- in trying to abate illegal

·5· ·gambling within the state.

·6· · · · And we recognized early on that, you know, we

·7· ·needed partners and we've worked really hard to try

·8· ·and secure partnerships with local law enforcement

·9· ·as well as our state partners and this is just the

10· ·beginning.

11· · · · You know, I really believe that this next year

12· ·we're going to see some fantastic successes.· Not

13· ·all of our successes have -- can be shared,

14· ·because, you know, the -- the nature of the

15· ·business is that while we might make some arrests

16· ·and make some inroads into an investigation and

17· ·bring things to a conclusion, we can't always share

18· ·those because there's the next layer that we need

19· ·to go after.

20· · · · So I -- I am proud to kind of share some of

21· ·the things that we've done this past month, just

22· ·from the standpoint of letting you appreciate all

23· ·the work that the law enforcement professionals

24· ·that we have in gaming enforcement are doing, so.

25· · · · This last month our -- our investigators and
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·1· ·our analysts touched 64 different investigations

·2· ·that, you know -- these are long-term

·3· ·investigations for the most part.· You know, you

·4· ·get in there, you work some level of investigation

·5· ·until you've exhausted what you got and you got to

·6· ·go to the next level, but we've worked on 64

·7· ·different investigations and we actually closed 24

·8· ·investigations.· And out of those 24

·9· ·investigations, 10 people were arrested and -- with

10· ·a total of 25 charges across that.

11· · · · And we were able through partnerships with our

12· ·local law enforcement partners we were able to

13· ·close 11 illegal casinos across the state.· That

14· ·also doesn't include the fact that we were able to

15· ·shut down some convenience store operations that

16· ·had illegal slot issue machines within -- within

17· ·them as well.

18· · · · As a result of that $411,000 were seized

19· ·either through our partners or through us, and the

20· ·importance of, you know, that money seizure is it

21· ·disenfranchises, you know, the -- the bad guys.· If

22· ·they don't have access to that money, they don't

23· ·have the capability to continue to be as successful

24· ·in their illegal enterprises as -- you know, as

25· ·they have been.· So that's incredibly important and
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·1· ·this is just the tip of the iceberg, this is just

·2· ·the tip of the iceberg.

·3· · · · On our intel and analytical side, you know,

·4· ·they -- they're absolutely a vital part of what we

·5· ·do.· Besides the fact that they, you know, did

·6· ·business backgrounds and did individual subject

·7· ·backgrounds to try and determine all the connecting

·8· ·dots that go with that, they also do employment

·9· ·backgrounds for us.

10· · · · They've done a number of those, and they also

11· ·provided assistance to other law enforcement

12· ·agencies three times this past month.· And the

13· ·importance of that is that, you know, we're --

14· ·we're developing ourselves as subject matter

15· ·experts in this field.

16· · · · And most law enforcement within the state,

17· ·there are very few, let's just say that, there are

18· ·very few that have that expertise and they look to

19· ·us to kind of bolster their enforcement activities

20· ·and bring to bear the -- kind of the resources and

21· ·the knowledge that they need, and that kind of

22· ·leads on to, you know, the -- the -- what

23· ·Director Trombetta was saying is that, you know, we

24· ·see a lot more activity from local law enforcement

25· ·and that's because, I really believe, is, you know,
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·1· ·they call us and ask us for support in those areas

·2· ·and how to -- what to look for, how -- you know,

·3· ·what are the best strategies for enforcement and --

·4· ·and we give them those resources and -- and we

·5· ·continue to do that and I believe that that's an

·6· ·important part of what we're doing, so.

·7· · · · That's just kind of a real broad overview of

·8· ·what we've done this last month.· I'll continue to

·9· ·keep you posted on it and I -- as always I

10· ·appreciate your support of what we're trying to do

11· ·here.· Thank you.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Director Herold.

13· ·Again just one month alone, it's just -- it's

14· ·tremendous in the report.· I'm happy that you

15· ·shared it with the public here.

16· · · · Commissioners, any comments or questions of

17· ·Director Herold?

18· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· If I could just -- you

19· ·know, just make a comment.· I think the work being

20· ·done is outstanding.· In my opinion there's no

21· ·question about it and I think the -- the fact that

22· ·being out there and getting the attention that we

23· ·get for doing these types of operations and these

24· ·illegal casinos is going to be -- is a real helpful

25· ·push for the rest of the -- the state in terms of
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·1· ·law enforcement for them to get involved, because

·2· ·there's been a lot of frustration as we know over

·3· ·the years working these kinds of cases.

·4· · · · Prosecutors sometimes would be hesitant to

·5· ·prosecute them, but as they -- as we make more and

·6· ·more of these cases and we're involved with more

·7· ·and more of these local agencies, more of them are

·8· ·going to do it, more of them will be prosecuted,

·9· ·and I think it will -- it will -- that's our

10· ·most -- our biggest value I think to the state is

11· ·that expertise you talked about and sharing that

12· ·and working as closely as -- as closely as they --

13· ·as we can with these agencies.

14· · · · Because they're ready -- obviously ready to do

15· ·it and they'll be there and they'll do it, whatever

16· ·they have to do, to fight criminal activity in

17· ·their counties.· And anything we can do to assist

18· ·them may be just a little helpful push to get it

19· ·over and get to where they -- they want to go.

20· · · · So I appreciate what Director Trombetta said

21· ·in terms of the agencies that -- that are working

22· ·these cases.· I appreciate their assistance and --

23· ·and coming to us and our assistance to them.

24· · · · And the partnership going to invaluable over

25· ·time and I -- just from my own personal view of the
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·1· ·news, you see more and more of it occurring

·2· ·throughout the state since we started this and

·3· ·since your -- you and your folks got out there and

·4· ·started spreading the word, so it will catch on --

·5· ·continue to catch on.

·6· · · · A big problem in this -- in this state, the

·7· ·illegal casinos that have been spread so much

·8· ·throughout the state, it's a big problem and it's

·9· ·going to take a lot of attention and a lot of time,

10· ·they're long-term investigations as you mentioned

11· ·and -- and -- and, you know, they -- they're --

12· ·they're slow sometimes, but you got to do them

13· ·right and you've got to do them effectively.

14· · · · So I -- I -- I see great things happening and

15· ·I'm looking forward to the next few years in terms

16· ·of the results with all this work that's been done

17· ·for -- with these illegal operations that are going

18· ·on out there.

19· · · · So thank you for -- for that, please pass on

20· ·to all the folks that work with you.· And I hope

21· ·you'll continue to work closely like that and get

22· ·the word out.· We got Katie now that's going to

23· ·help us get that word out all the time and share

24· ·that with everybody and I think that would be a big

25· ·spark as well, so.
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·1· · · · And I love you sharing what you do each month

·2· ·and the statistics and -- and so forth for us to

·3· ·see and for the public to see what we're doing.  I

·4· ·think it's really important that we're transparent

·5· ·on that and that we are sharing what we're doing

·6· ·here with -- with everybody.

·7· · · · Everybody can see it, the public can see it,

·8· ·people know it's happening.· The -- the criminal

·9· ·element can see it and know that we're -- we're on

10· ·our way and we're coming and, you know, be ready,

11· ·because we're -- we're coming and we're not going

12· ·to tolerate it anymore, so we want that word to get

13· ·out as well, so thank you.

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you,

15· ·Commissioner Drago, I agree.

16· · · · Commissioner D'Aquila.

17· · · · COMMISSIONER D'AQUILA:· I would just like to

18· ·add to what Commissioner Drago said.

19· ·Director Herold's been with us less than two years

20· ·and when you -- from a businessman's perspective

21· ·when you look at the size and quality of the staff

22· ·and -- and that commitment you made I remember when

23· ·you were interviewing with us that you would create

24· ·a team statewide.

25· · · · And then you took it -- you're taking it
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·1· ·beyond, because I know we have an upcoming

·2· ·conference where out-of-state law enforcement

·3· ·leaders will be coming to work together to learn

·4· ·what great work we're doing here in Florida, how we

·5· ·can help one another as we cross state lines as

·6· ·well.

·7· · · · That -- all those statements, it was much more

·8· ·of a statement.· You've done it.· I was just so

·9· ·impressed to see the number of cases we've got

10· ·going on.· I'm not impressed to see we have that

11· ·many problems of course in the State of Florida,

12· ·but as Commissioner Drago has outlined, this is a

13· ·very serious problem with all the crimes that are

14· ·ancillary.· Great progress and thank you on behalf

15· ·of both the Commission and I think I can say on

16· ·behalf of the people of the State of Florida.

17· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you.

18· ·Commissioner Repp.

19· · · · COMMISSIONER REPP:· I'd like to also commend

20· ·you and -- and everyone in your group there for the

21· ·work they've done.· It just seems to be getting

22· ·better and better and we're really getting more and

23· ·more accomplished.

24· · · · I'm excited for the intel conference that we

25· ·have coming to Tallahassee and the people coming,
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·1· ·Nevada, Mississippi, some of these big gaming

·2· ·places to share their intel with us and I think

·3· ·there's a lot to be learned and really good

·4· ·connections that can be made there.

·5· · · · So I'm excited also like everyone else here to

·6· ·see where this goes and -- and how far we can take

·7· ·this, because it's -- it's looking very -- very

·8· ·promising.

·9· · · · So I appreciate it.· Thank everybody when you

10· ·get back for us, please.

11· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thank you, Director Herald.

12· · · · MR. HEROLD:· Thank you.

13· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· See, the applause was

14· ·definitely worthy there.

15· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Thank you.· So just kind of

16· ·following staff-wise, you mentioned Katie several

17· ·times.· We have hired Katie.· She's our new

18· ·director of communications.· She has hit the ground

19· ·running and looking forward to kind of continuing

20· ·to see how that office develops.

21· · · · You know, it's obviously a key part of what

22· ·we're trying to do to just get our message out

23· ·there and I'm very confident in her abilities

24· ·already.· So it's a great hire and welcome, Katie.

25· · · · Other staff-wise we're doing, you know,
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·1· ·everything we can right now to fill vacancies.

·2· ·We -- you know, state agencies in general are

·3· ·struggling in some key areas where -- you know, we

·4· ·mentioned it at the last meeting, so we're trying

·5· ·to fill our legal team, trying to fill some of the

·6· ·IT positions that are just -- you know, it's not

·7· ·uncommon, it's not a Gaming Commission specific

·8· ·issue.

·9· · · · A lot of states are dealing with it, but

10· ·we're -- we're trying to fill all -- you know, all

11· ·of these spots that are very important for what

12· ·we're doing.

13· · · · Staff has been doing a lot.· I know -- you

14· ·know, session, it's a late session this year, but

15· ·we're already trying to get things ready for you

16· ·all just in terms of legislative proposals and our

17· ·legislative budget request.

18· · · · So we're working, you know, kind of -- staff's

19· ·working to get all this stuff together.· They

20· ·continue to have a -- you know, bring it to you and

21· ·give feedback and then kind of move forward to make

22· ·sure the Commission is able to continue to do all

23· ·the things that, you know, we've already done and

24· ·that we're trying to do.

25· · · · I have I think two other updates one has to do
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·1· ·with just the calendar for the next meetings.· So

·2· ·right -- right now -- sorry, speak into the

·3· ·microphone -- our next meeting in September is set

·4· ·on my notes for September 5th.

·5· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· That's right.· That's what

·6· ·we've got.

·7· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· All right.· Then I have an

·8· ·October 2nd.

·9· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· That's right.

10· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· And November was TBD, so

11· ·November-wise I have availability for conference

12· ·rooms.· The issue is that we have some slot

13· ·licenses that I wanted to kind of make sure we were

14· ·aware of.

15· · · · So just to refresh, slot licenses are renewed

16· ·based on the date that they were originally issued,

17· ·so they happen sporadically throughout the calendar

18· ·year instead of like the operational licenses that

19· ·all happen by statute on the same day.

20· · · · We have a slot license that will need to be

21· ·renewed on or before November 8th, so I would

22· ·recommend we meet that first week in November, the

23· ·5th, 6th, 7th, 8th.

24· · · · The room across the hall, the PSC room is

25· ·occupied the 5th, 6th, and 7th, which is Tuesday,
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·1· ·Wednesday, Thursday.· So we could meet here on

·2· ·Thursday, the 7th, or we could meet over there if

·3· ·you want to do a Friday meeting.

·4· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Commissioners, are you good

·5· ·with the 6th or the 7th, any preference?

·6· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· No.· Either one.

·7· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· It's election -- election

·8· ·day that week.· You guys, want to do the 7th?

·9· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· 7th.

10· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· November -- okay.

11· ·November 7th in this room.

12· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Perfect.· And then for

13· ·December if I could, there are two renewals in

14· ·December, one on December 6th and one on

15· ·December 21st.

16· · · · So I would recommend we meet that first week

17· ·in December, because then -- then we can -- I can

18· ·work with staff on the issue of the 21st.· Again we

19· ·try to work with permitholders.· Again I'm very

20· ·grateful.· Most of the time they're very

21· ·considerate in working with us, but we can have a

22· ·special meeting if needed, but, yeah, I would

23· ·suggest we meet --

24· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Thursday.

25· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· -- December 5th is a Thursday.
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·1· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· That sounds good.· And this

·2· ·room or the other room?

·3· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· They're both open, yes.· Yes,

·4· ·ma'am.

·5· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Great.· Commissioners, are

·6· ·you okay with December 5th?

·7· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· Yeah.

·8· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Okay.· So we've got the

·9· ·rest of the calendar year planned.

10· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Yes, we do.· Perfect.· And

11· ·that's all that I have in terms of prepared

12· ·updates.· I'm obviously available to address any

13· ·questions or concerns you all have.

14· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Commissioners, any comments

15· ·or questions?

16· · · · We've been very grateful, at least I'm very

17· ·grateful, that you -- obviously we meet every week,

18· ·but really appreciate adding some additional staff

19· ·for additional time on our -- our regular meetings

20· ·too and I know it's a lot with -- with all of us

21· ·and setting aside hours upon hours.· So really just

22· ·thank you for that leadership that you took to

23· ·enhance what we're already doing.

24· · · · MR. TROMBETTA:· Of course.

25· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Okay.· If there are no
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·1· ·other comments or questions, the executive

·2· ·director's report is concluded.

·3· · · · And we don't have any speakers that are signed

·4· ·up for public comment, but I will give an

·5· ·opportunity if there is anybody in the public that

·6· ·would like to address the Commission, you may

·7· ·please feel free to come on up.· Okay.· Going once,

·8· ·twice.

·9· · · · Commissioners, are there any other matters to

10· ·address?

11· · · · COMMISSIONER DRAGO:· No.

12· · · · VICE CHAIR BROWN:· Seeing none, we are

13· ·concluded -- adjourned for the day.· Thank you.

14· · · · (The proceedings concluded at 10:26 a.m.)
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·1· · · · · · · · · ·CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

·2· ·STATE OF FLORIDA

·3· ·COUNTY OF LEON

·4

·5· · · · · · ·I, JUDY LYNN MARTIN, do hereby certify

·6· ·that I was authorized to and did stenographically

·7· ·report the foregoing proceedings and that the

·8· ·transcript, pages 1 through 51, is a true record of

·9· ·my stenographic notes.

10· · · · · · ·I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a

11· ·relative, employee, attorney, or counsel of any of

12· ·the parties, nor am I a relative or employee of any

13· ·of the parties' attorney or counsel connected with

14· ·the action, nor am I financially interested in the

15· ·action.

16· · · · · · ·Dated this 23rd day of August, 2024.
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20· ·_____________________________________________
· · ·JUDY LYNN MARTIN
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MEMORANDUM 

 

To:   The Florida Gaming Control Commission  

From:  Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 

Through: Emily Alvarado, Chief Attorney 

Re:  FGCC v. Gilberto Jose Zerpa Case No. 2024-017680 Default Final 

Order 

Date:   August 22, 2024 

 

Executive Summary 

 

The Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering seeks the suspension of Gilberto Jose Zerpa 

(“Respondent”) Pari-Mutuel Wagering Professional Individual Occupational 

License. By failing to respond to the administrative complaint, Respondent waived 

his right to request a hearing contesting the Division’s decision. Therefore, the 

Florida Gaming Control Commission should enter a final order suspending 

Respondent’s Pari-Mutuel Wagering Professional Individual Occupational License. 

 

Background 

On March 20, 2024, a default final judgment of $36,356.49 was entered against 

Respondent for unpaid financial obligations regarding horse feed products provided 

on the ground of a pari-mutuel facility in the County Court of the Seventeenth 

Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida in case number COCE23091293. 

These unpaid financial obligations related to racing conducted at a pari-mutuel 

facility in the state of Florida.  

 

The Division filed an administrative complaint against Respondent seeking 

suspension of Respondent’s Pari-Mutuel Wagering Professional Individual 

Occupational License. The election of rights accompanying the administrative 

complaint made it clear that the Respondent had 21 days1 to file a written response 

to the administrative complaint. The Respondent was served2 on July 31, 2024, 

which means the Respondent had until August 21, 2024, to respond. He has never 

responded. 

 

 

 
1 See Fla. Admin. Code R. 28-106.111(4) (“Any person who receives written notice of an agency decision and who 

fails to file a written request for a hearing within 21 days waives the right to request a hearing on such matters.”) 
2 Section 16.718(2), Florida Statutes, provides in pertinent part, that ‘service by email to an applicant's or licensee's 

e-mail address of record with the commission constitutes sufficient notice to the applicant or licensee for any official 

communication.’ 
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Analysis  

Section 550.105(7), Florida Statutes, provides, that “[t]he Commission may deny, 

revoke, or suspend any occupational license if the applicant therefor or holder 

thereof accumulates unpaid obligations or defaults in obligations, or issues drafts or 

checks that are dishonored or for which payment is refused without reasonable 

cause, if such unpaid obligations, defaults, or dishonored or refused drafts or checks 

directly relate to the sport of jai alai or racing being conducted at a pari-mutuel 

facility within this state.” Respondent defaulted in Seventeenth Circuit on a case 

relating to horse racing in the state of Florida. Accordingly, Respondent license may 

be suspended or revoked.  

 

Because Respondent failed to file a timely response to the properly served 

administrative complaint, he waived his right to request a hearing.  

 

Staff Recommendation: The Florida Gaming Control Commission should enter a 

final order suspending Respondent’s Pari-Mutuel Wagering Professional Individual 

Occupational License number 8204444 until the Commission receives confirmation 

that payment has been satisfied.  
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STATE OF FLORIDA  
FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION 

DIVISION OF PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING 

FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION, 
DIVISION OF PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING, 

 Petitioner, 

v. 

GILBERTO JOSE ZERPA, 

 Respondent. 
______________________________________/ 

FGCC Case No.: 2024-017680 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

The Florida Gaming Control Commission, Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 

(“Petitioner”), files this Administrative Complaint against Gilberto Jose Zerpa (“Respondent”), 

and alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating pari-mutuel wagering

pursuant to chapter 550, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material hereto, Respondent held a Pari-Mutuel Professional Individual

Occupational License, number 8204444-1021, issued pursuant to section 550.105(2)(a), Florida 

Statutes. 

3. On or about March 20, 2024, a default judgment of $36,356.49 was entered against

Respondent for unpaid financial obligations regarding horse feed products provided to Respondent 

in the County Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida, in 

case number COCE23091293. 

4. These unpaid financial obligations relate to racing conducted at a pari-mutuel

facility in the state of Florida. 

4/11/2024
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5. Pursuant to section 550.105(7), Florida Statutes: 

The commission may deny, revoke, or suspend any occupational 
license if the applicant therefor or holder thereof accumulates 
unpaid obligations or defaults in obligations, or issues drafts or 
checks that are dishonored or for which payment is refused without 
reasonable cause, if such unpaid obligations, defaults, or dishonored 
or refused drafts or checks directly relate to the sport of jai alai or 
racing being conducted at a pari-mutuel facility within this state. 

 
6. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated section 550.105(7), Florida Statutes, 

by accumulating unpaid obligations or defaults in obligations that directly related to racing 

conducted at a pari-mutuel facility in the state of Florida. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests the Florida Gaming Control Commission 

enter an Order imposing against Respondent one or more of the penalties the Commission is 

authorized to impose pursuant to section 550.105(7), Florida Statutes, and/or the rules promulgated 

thereunder. 

This Administrative Complaint for FGCC Case Number 2024-017680 is signed this 11th 

day of April, 2024. 

 
/s/Emily A. Alvarado 
Emily A. Alvarado 
Deputy Chief Attorney 
Florida Bar Number: 1025200 
Florida Gaming Control Commission 
Office of the General Counsel 
Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 
4070 Esplanade Way, Suite 250 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202 
Telephone: (850) 794-8066 
Facsimile: (850) 536-8709 
Primary: Emily.Alvarado@flagaming.gov 
Secondary: Ebonie.Lanier@flgaming.gov 
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NOTICE OF RIGHTS TO REQUEST A HEARING 

 Pursuant to sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, you have the right to request a 

hearing to challenge the charges contained in this Administrative Complaint. If you choose to 

request a hearing, you will have the right to be represented by counsel, or other qualified 

representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses, and to have 

subpoenas and subpoenas duces tecum issued on your behalf. 

Any request for an administrative proceeding to challenge or contest the charges contained 

in this Administrative Complaint must conform to rule 28-106.2015, Florida Administrative Code. 

Pursuant to rule 28-106.111, Florida Administrative Code, you must request a hearing within 21 

days from receipt of this Notice, or you will waive your right to request a hearing. 

Mediation under section 120.573, Florida Statutes, is not available to resolve this 

Administrative Complaint. 
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Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 
Office of Investigations 

1400 West Commercial Boulevard, Suite 165 
Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33309 

Phone: 754.288.1055 • Fax: 754.315.8380 

 
Louis Trombetta, Executive Director 

 
Ron DeSantis, Governor 

 

FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION 
HTTPS://FLGAMING.GOV/  

OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS 
 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: 
PMW 

Region: 
SOUTHERN 

Date of Complaint: 
March 25, 2024 

Case Number: 
2024 01 7680 

Respondent: 
 
ZERPA, GILBERTO JOSE 
2000 ATLANTIC SHORES BOULEVARD 
HALLANDALE, FL 33009 
(786) 488-6487 
Zerpa.stables@gmail.com 
 
 

Complainant: 
 
DIVISION OF PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING 
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS 
1400 W. COMMERCIAL BLVD. SUITE 165 
FT. LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33309 
TEL. - 954-202-3900 

License # and Type: 
8204444  -  1021 

Profession: 
Individual Animal Owner 

Report Date: 
March 26, 2024 

Period of Investigation: 
March 25, 2024, through March 26, 2024 

Type of Report: 
Final  

Alleged Violation: F.S.S. 550.105 Occupational licenses of racetrack employees; fees; denial, 
suspension, and revocation of license; penalties and fines. –  
(7) “The commission may deny, revoke, or suspend any occupational license if the applicant therefor or 
holder thereof accumulates unpaid obligations or defaults in obligations, or issues drafts or checks that are 
dishonored or for which payment is refused without reasonable cause, if such unpaid obligations, defaults, 
or dishonored or refused drafts or checks directly relate to the sport of jai alai or racing being conducted at a 
pari-mutuel facility within this state.” 
 
Synopsis: On March 25, 2024, a copy of a Default Final Judgment against Gilberto Jose ZERPA, in favor of 
Finish Line Feed, Inc., Case No. COCE-23-091293, Division 56, in the County Court of the 17th Judicial 
Circuit in and For Broward County, Florida, ordered on March 20, 2024, was received via e-mail from 
Attorney Mark Gunderson. 
 
Per said judgment, Finish Line Feed, Inc., shall recover from ZERPA the sum of $34,687.14, in principle, 
filing fees of $424.35, process serve fees of $45.00 and attorney fees in the amount of $1,200.00, making a 
total of $36,356.49, which shall bear interest at the rate of 9.34% per year (EXHIBIT #1). 
 
Related Case(s):  
Investigator   /   Date 
 
 
 

Investigator Supervisor   /   Date 
 
 
Julio Minaya   /   March 26, 2024 

Chief of Investigations   /   Date 
 
 
 
 
Bradford D. Jones   /   April 4, 2024 

 
 

146



 
FGCC INVESTIGATIVE REPORT  CASE NUMBER: 2024-01-7680 

 
CONTINUATION 
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A check of VERSA records reflect that Gilberto Jose ZERPA obtained a 3-year Florida PMW 
Occupational License as an Individual Animal Owner on July 7, 2023.  This license expires on June 
30, 2026.  A copy of his licensing information is attached as EXHIBIT #2. 
 
In the letter from Gunderson dated March 25, 2024, he states that the original amount of 
$34,687.14 is for horse feed products provided by his client at a Florida Pari-Mutuel facility where 
ZERPA stables his horses.  Gunderson also provided copies of the Original Complaint and 
invoices related to his case.  These documents are attached as EXHIBITS #1 & 3. 
 
On March 26, 2024, an Enforcement Alert was placed on ZERPAS’ license record in VERSA to 
reflect this unsatisfied Financial Obligation.  A copy of the License Action Request Form and 
VERSA alert is attached as EXHIBIT #4. 
 
Conclusion: ZEPRA is in violation of F.S.S. 550.105(7) for failing to satisfy the Final Judgment. 
 
Status: Case is closed by Investigations and forwarded to Legal for review. 
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MEMORANDUM 
 

To:   The Florida Gaming Control Commission  
From:  Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 
Through: Emily Alvarado, Chief Attorney 
Re:  FGCC v. Greg Bardakjian Case No. 2024-037000 Default Final Order 
Date:   August 21, 2024 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering seeks the suspension of Greg Bardakjian 
(“Respondent”) Pari-Mutuel Wagering Professional Individual Occupational 
License. By failing to respond to the administrative complaint, Respondent waived 
his right to request a hearing contesting the Division’s decision. Therefore, the 
Florida Gaming Control Commission should enter a final order suspending 
Respondent’s Pari-Mutuel Wagering Professional Individual Occupational License. 
 
Background 
On January 26, 2024, a default final judgment of $2,696.06 was entered against 
Respondent for unpaid financial obligations regarding veterinary services provided 
on the ground of a pari-mutuel facility in the County Court of the Seventeenth 
Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida in case number COCE23091301. 
These unpaid financial obligations related to racing conducted at a pari-mutuel 
facility in the state of Florida.  
 
The Division filed an administrative complaint against Respondent seeking 
suspension of Respondent’s Pari-Mutuel Wagering Professional Individual 
Occupational License. The election of rights accompanying the administrative 
complaint made it clear that the Respondent had 21 days1 to file a written response 
to the administrative complaint. The Respondent was served on July 22, 2024, which 
means the Respondent had until August 12, 2024, to respond. He has never 
responded. 
 

Analysis  
Section 550.105(7), Florida Statutes, provides, that “[t]he Commission may deny, 
revoke, or suspend any occupational license if the applicant therefor or holder 
thereof accumulates unpaid obligations or defaults in obligations, or issues drafts or 
checks that are dishonored or for which payment is refused without reasonable 
cause, if such unpaid obligations, defaults, or dishonored or refused drafts or checks 

 
1 See Fla. Admin. Code R. 28-106.111(4) (“Any person who receives written notice of an agency decision and who 
fails to file a written request for a hearing within 21 days waives the right to request a hearing on such matters.”) 
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directly relate to the sport of jai alai or racing being conducted at a pari-mutuel 
facility within this state.” Respondent defaulted in Seventeenth Circuit on a case 
relating to horse racing in the state of Florida. Accordingly, Respondent license may 
be suspended or revoked.  
 
Because Respondent failed to file a timely response to the properly served 
administrative complaint, he waived his right to request a hearing.  
 
Staff Recommendation: The Florida Gaming Control Commission should enter a 
final order suspending Respondent’s Pari-Mutuel Wagering Professional Individual 
Occupational License number 7960416 until the Commission receives confirmation 
that payment has been satisfied.  
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STATE OF FLORIDA  
FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION 

DIVISION OF PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING 

FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION, 
DIVISION OF PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING, 

 Petitioner, 

v. 

GREG BARDAKJIAN, 

 Respondent. 
______________________________________/ 

FGCC Case No.: 2024-037000 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

The Florida Gaming Control Commission, Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 

(“Petitioner”), files this Administrative Complaint against Greg Bardakjian (“Respondent”), and 

alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating pari-mutuel wagering

pursuant to chapter 550, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material hereto, Respondent held a Pari-Mutuel Professional Individual

Occupational License, number 7960416, issued pursuant to section 550.105(2)(a), Florida 

Statutes. 

3. On or about January 26, 2024, a default judgment of $2,696.06 was entered against

Respondent for unpaid financial obligations regarding veterinary services in the County Court of 

the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida, in case number 

COCE23091301. 

4. These unpaid financial obligations relate to racing conducted at a pari-mutuel

facility in the state of Florida. 

7/17/2024
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5. Pursuant to section 550.105(7), Florida Statutes:

The commission may deny, revoke, or suspend any occupational
license if the applicant therefor or holder thereof accumulates
unpaid obligations or defaults in obligations, or issues drafts or
checks that are dishonored or for which payment is refused without
reasonable cause, if such unpaid obligations, defaults, or dishonored
or refused drafts or checks directly relate to the sport of jai alai or
racing being conducted at a pari-mutuel facility within this state.

6. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated section 550.105(7), Florida Statutes,

by accumulating unpaid obligations or defaults in obligations that directly related to racing 

conducted at a pari-mutuel facility in the state of Florida. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests the Florida Gaming Control Commission 

enter an Order imposing against Respondent one or more of the penalties the Commission is 

authorized to impose pursuant to chapter 550.105(7), Florida Statutes, and/or the rules 

promulgated thereunder. 

This Administrative Complaint for FGCC Case Number 2024-037000  is signed this 16th 

day of July 2024. 

/s/Emily A. Alvarado 
Emily A. Alvarado 
Chief Attorney 
FBN: 1025200 
Florida Gaming Control Commission 
Office of the General Counsel 
Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 
4070 Esplanade Way, Suite 250 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202 
Telephone: (850) 794-8066 
Facsimile: (850) 536-8709 
Primary: Emily.Alvarado@flagaming.gov 
Secondary: Ebonie.Lanier@flgaming.gov 

183



Page 3 of 3 

NOTICE OF RIGHTS TO REQUEST A HEARING 

Pursuant to sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, you have the right to request a 

hearing to challenge the charges contained in this Administrative Complaint. If you choose to 

request a hearing, you will have the right to be represented by counsel, or other qualified 

representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses, and to have 

subpoenas and subpoenas duces tecum issued on your behalf. 

Any request for an administrative proceeding to challenge or contest the charges contained 

in this Administrative Complaint must conform to rule 28-106.2015, Florida Administrative Code. 

Pursuant to rule 28-106.111, Florida Administrative Code, you must request a hearing within 21 

days from receipt of this Notice, or you will waive your right to request a hearing. 

Mediation under section 120.573, Florida Statutes, is not available to resolve this 

Administrative Complaint. 

2024-037000
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Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 
Office of Investigations 

1400 West Commercial Boulevard, Suite 165 
Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33309 

Phone: 754.288.1055 • Fax: 754.315.8380 

 
Louis Trombetta, Executive Director 

 
Ron DeSantis, Governor 

 

FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION 
HTTPS://FLGAMING.GOV/  

OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS 
 

INVESTIGATIVE REPORT 
Office: 
PMW 

Region: 
SOUTHERN 

Date of Complaint: 
June 27, 2024 

Case Number: 
2024 03 7000 

Respondent: 
 
BARDAKJIAN, GREG 
3325 KASHIWA STREET 
TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA 90505 
(310) 993-0520 
 
 
 

Complainant: 
 
DIVISION OF PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING 
OFFICE OF INVESTIGATIONS 
1400 W. COMMERCIAL BLVD. SUITE 165 
FT. LAUDERDALE, FLORIDA 33309 
TEL. - 954-202-3900 

License # and Type: 
7960416  -  1021 

Profession: 
Individual Animal Owner 

Report Date: 
June 27, 2024 

Period of Investigation: 
June 27, 2024, through June 27, 2024 

Type of Report: 
Final  

Alleged Violation: F.S.S. 550.105 Occupational licenses of racetrack employees; fees; denial, 
suspension, and revocation of license; penalties and fines. –  
(7) “The commission may deny, revoke, or suspend any occupational license if the applicant therefor or 
holder thereof accumulates unpaid obligations or defaults in obligations, or issues drafts or checks that are 
dishonored or for which payment is refused without reasonable cause, if such unpaid obligations, defaults, 
or dishonored or refused drafts or checks directly relate to the sport of jai alai or racing being conducted at a 
pari-mutuel facility within this state.” 
 
Synopsis: On June 27, 2024, a copy of a Default Final Judgment against Greg BARDAKJIAN, in favor of 
PetVet Operating LLC., dba TFB Equine Case No. COCE-23-091301, Division 54, in the County Court of the 
17th Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida, ordered on January 26, 2024, was received via e-
mail from Attorney Mark Gunderson. 
 
Per said judgment, PetVet Operating LLC., dba TFB Equine shall recover from BARDAKJIAN the sum of 
$1,227.33, in principle, filing fees of $191.48, process serve fees of $77.25 and attorney fees in the amount 
of $1,200.00, making a total of $2,696.06, which shall bear interest at the rate of 9.09% per year (EXHIBIT 
#1). 
 
Related Case(s):  
Investigator   /   Date 
 
 
 

Investigator Supervisor   /   Date 
 
 
Julio Minaya   /   June 27, 2024 

Chief of Investigations   /   Date 
 
 
 
 
Bradford D. Jones   /   June 27, 2024 
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CONTINUATION 

 

 2 

 
A check of VERSA records reflect that Greg BARDAKJIAN obtained a 3-year Florida PMW 
Occupational License as an Individual Animal Owner on December 15, 2022.  This license expires 
on June 30, 2025.  A copy of his licensing information is attached as EXHIBIT #2. 
 
In the letter from Gunderson dated June 27, 2024, he states that the original amount of $1,227.33 is 
for veterinary services provided by his client at a Florida Pari-Mutuel facility where BARDAKJIAN 
stables his horses.  Gunderson also provided copies of the Original Complaint and invoices related 
to his case.  These documents are attached as EXHIBITS #1 & 3. 
 
On June 27, 2024, an Enforcement Alert was placed on BARDAKJIAN’S license record in VERSA 
to reflect this unsatisfied Financial Obligation.  A copy of the License Action Request Form and 
VERSA alert is attached as EXHIBIT #4. 
 
Conclusion: BARDAKJIAN is in violation of F.S.S. 550.105(7) for failing to satisfy the Final 
Judgment. 
 
Status: Case is closed by Investigations and forwarded to Legal for review. 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

To:  The Florida Gaming Control Commission 

From:  Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 

Through: Emily Alvarado, Chief Attorney 

Re:  David A. Monell, Jr.; Case No. 2024-039702 

Date:  August 21, 2024 

 

Executive Summary 

The Applicant, David A. Monell seeks a waiver of his disqualifying offense and 

issuance of a Pari-Mutuel Wagering General Individual Occupational License (the 

“Application”). The Applicant submitted a completed application for a Pari-Mutuel 

Wagering General Individual Occupational License. Upon review of the Application, 

it appears the Applicant has been convicted of felony offenses, in Marion County, 

Florida. A Division investigator conducted a waiver interview of the Applicant on 

July 22, 2024, and documented the waiver interview in a report submitted to the 

Commission for consideration.  

 

Pertinent Facts 

On May 10, 2024, the Applicant submitted an application for a Pari-Mutuel 

Wagering General Individual Occupational License to the Division. On this 

application, the Applicant answered “yes” to the question asking if he has been 

convicted of a disqualifying offense and included one misdemeanor offense. On June 

10, 2024, the Applicant was issued a deficiency letter by the Division requesting that 

he provide information, court disposition records, and arrest reports regarding arrests 

in Marion County, Florida on July 7, 2000, and September 11, 2003. The Applicant 

submitted an updated application and request for waiver on June 14, 2024. Upon 

review of the completed Application, it appears that on February 21, 2001, the 

Applicant was convicted of the following felony offenses in Marion County, Florida: 

• Forgery of a Traffic Citation;  

• Forgery of a Traffic Citation; and  

• Providing a False Name to a Law Enforcement Officer- Adversely Affecting 

Another.  
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The Applicant applied for a waiver from the statutory restrictions excluding 

applicants with disqualifying offenses. On July 22, 2024, Commission investigators 

conducted a waiver interview with the Applicant.  The waiver interview is 

documented in a report included as Exhibit A. 

These felony convictions are disqualifying offenses pursuant to section 550.105, 

Florida Statutes. Furthermore, the Commission may deny an application if the 

applicant has falsely sworn, in a signed oath or affirmation, to a material statement, 

including, but not limited to, the criminal history of the applicant or licensee. 

Relevant Law 

Section 550.105(5)(b), Florida Statutes, provides, in pertinent part that: 

. . . the commission may deny, suspend, revoke, or declare ineligible 

any occupational license if the applicant for such license has been 

convicted in this state, in any other state, or under the laws of the United 

States of a capital felony, a felony, or an offense in any other state which 

would be a felony under the laws of this state involving arson; 

trafficking in, conspiracy to traffic in, smuggling, importing, 

conspiracy to smuggle or import, or delivery, sale, or distribution of a 

controlled substance; or a crime involving a lack of good moral 

character, or has had a pari-mutuel license revoked by this state or any 

other jurisdiction for an offense related to pari-mutuel wagering. 

Section 550.105(5)(d), Florida Statutes, provides that: 

…the term “convicted” means having been found guilty, with or without 

adjudication of guilt, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry 

of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere. However, the term “conviction” 

shall not be applied to a crime committed prior to the effective date of 

this subsection in a manner that would invalidate any occupational 

license issued prior to the effective date of this subsection or subsequent 

renewal for any person holding such a license. 

 

Section 550.105(5)(c), Florida Statutes, provides in pertinent part that:  

  

“[i]f the applicant establishes that she or he is of good moral character, 

that she or he has been rehabilitated, and that the crime she or he was 

convicted of is not related to pari-mutuel wagering and is not a capital 
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offense, the restrictions excluding offenders may be waived by the 

commission.”  

 

Furthermore, section 16.717, Florida Statutes, provides:  

 

“[t]he commission may deny the application of, or suspend or revoke 

the license of, any person who submits an application for licensure upon 

which application the person has falsely sworn, in a signed oath or 

affirmation, to a material statement, including, but not limited to, the 

criminal history of the applicant or licensee. Additionally, the person is 

subject to any other penalties provided by law. 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

To:  The Florida Gaming Control Commission 

From:  Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 

Through: Emily Alvarado, Chief Attorney 

Re:  Edward Jung Wong, Case No. 2024-046235 

Date:  August 21, 2024 
 

Executive Summary 

The Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering (the “Division”) seeks to deny the 

application of Edward Jung Wong (the “Applicant”) for a Slot 

Machine/Cardroom/Pari-Mutuel Combination Occupational License (the 

“Application”). The Applicant submitted a completed application for a Slot 

Machine/Cardroom/Pari-Mutuel Combination Occupational License on June 18, 

2024. Upon review of the Application, it appears Applicant has been convicted of a 

felony offense, in Broward County. Therefore, the Florida Gaming Control 

Commission should authorize the issuance of a Letter of License Denial. 

 

Pertinent Facts 

On May 14, 2024, the Applicant submitted an application for a Slot 

Machine/Cardroom/Pari-Mutuel Combination Occupational License to the Division. 

On June 12, 2024, the Applicant was issued a deficiency letter by the Division 

requesting that he provide a list all his convictions, specifically requesting 

information related to an arrest out of Broward County, Florida from September 12, 

2007. On June 18, 2024, the Applicant submitted a completed application. Upon 

review of the completed Application, it appears that on July 27, 1999, the Applicant 

was convicted of the following felony offense in Broward County, Florida: 

▪ Possession of Cocaine 

This felony conviction is a disqualifying offense pursuant to sections 550.105(5)(b), 

551.107(6)(a), and 849.086(6)(g), Florida Statutes. 

 

Relevant Law 

Section 550.105(5)(b), Florida Statutes, provides, in pertinent part that: 

. . . the commission may deny, suspend, revoke, or declare ineligible 

any occupational license if the applicant for such license has been 

convicted in this state, in any other state, or under the laws of the United 
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States of a capital felony, a felony, or an offense in any other state which 

would be a felony under the laws of this state involving arson; 

trafficking in, conspiracy to traffic in, smuggling, importing, 

conspiracy to smuggle or import, or delivery, sale, or distribution of a 

controlled substance; or a crime involving a lack of good moral 

character, or has had a pari-mutuel license revoked by this state or any 

other jurisdiction for an offense related to pari-mutuel wagering. 

Section 551.107(6)(a), Florida Statutes, provides in pertinent part that: 

“. . .the commission may deny, suspend, revoke, or refuse to renew any 

slot machine occupational license if the applicant for such license or the 

licensee has been convicted in this state, in any other state, or under the 

laws of the United States of a capital felony, a felony, or an offense in 

any other state that would be a felony under the laws of this state 

involving arson; trafficking in, conspiracy to traffic in, smuggling, 

importing, conspiracy to smuggle or import, or delivery, sale, or 

distribution of a controlled substance; racketeering; or a crime 

involving a lack of good moral character, or has had a gaming license 

revoked by this state or any other jurisdiction for any gaming-related 

offense.” 

Section 849.086(6)(f), Florida Statutes, provides that the “provisions specified in s. 

550.105(4), (5), (6), (7), (8), and (10) relating to licensure shall be applicable to 

cardroom occupational licenses.” 

Section 849.086(6)(g), Florida Statutes, provides that: 

[t]he commission may deny, declare ineligible, or revoke any cardroom 

occupational license if the applicant or holder thereof has been found 

guilty or had adjudication withheld in this state or any other state, or 

under the laws of the United States of a felony or misdemeanor 

involving forgery, larceny, extortion, conspiracy to defraud, or filing 

false reports to a government agency, racing or gaming commission or 

authority. 

Section 550.105(5)(d), Florida Statutes, provides that: 

…the term “convicted” means having been found guilty, with or 

without adjudication of guilt, as a result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, 

or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere. However, the term 

“conviction” shall not be applied to a crime committed prior to the 

effective date of this subsection in a manner that would invalidate any 
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occupational license issued prior to the effective date of this subsection 

or subsequent renewal for any person holding such a license. 

 

Staff Recommendation: Therefore, Florida Gaming Control Commission may deny 

the Application or declare the Applicant ineligible for a Slot 

Machine/Cardroom/Pari-Mutuel Combination Occupational License upon a finding 

of a disqualifying offense pursuant to sections 550.105, 551.107, and 849.086(6)(g). 

Accordingly, the Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering recommends that the Florida 

Gaming Control Commission authorize the issuance of a Letter of License Denial to 

Edward Jung Wong in this matter. 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

To:   The Florida Gaming Control Commission  

From:  Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 

Through: Emily Alvarado, Chief Attorney 

Re:   FGCC v. Kristin Miller Brown Number 2023-051666; Final Order 

Date:   August 21, 2024 

 

Executive Summary 

 

The Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering seeks the revocation of Luisa Perez’s 

(“Respondent”) Cardroom Employee Occupational License. Respondent was 

properly served with an administrative complaint and an election of rights form. 

Respondent replied with an email indicating that she waives her right to any form of 

hearing. Respondent requests that a final order be entered imposing a penalty in this 

case.  Therefore, the Florida Gaming Control Commission should enter a final 

revoking Respondent’s Cardroom Employee Occupational License. 

 

Background 

 

On May 31, 2023, Respondent was arrested in Palm Beach County, Florida and was 

charged with Trafficking Cocaine, Trafficking Fentanyl, Trafficking 

Methamphetamine, Possession of Marijuana, Possession of Amphetamine and 

Dextroamphetamine, Trafficking Phencyclidine, and Possession of Drug 

Paraphernalia. On September 7, 2023, Respondent entered a plea of guilty and was 

convicted of Sale of Cocaine, Sale of Fentanyl, and Possession of Amphetamines in 

Palm Beach County, Florida in case number 2023CF004705AMB.  

 

The Division filed a three-count administrative complaint seeking revocation of 

Respondent’s Cardroom Employee Occupational License. Respondent received the 

complaint alongside an election of rights form. On July 1, 2024, Respondent 

responded to the complaint stating that she would surrender her license and waiver 

her right to a hearing. Respondent did not dispute the allegations contained within 

the administrative complaint, waived her right to any form of hearing, and requested 

that the Commission enter a final order imposing a penalty and fine. 

 

 

 

 

Analysis  
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Section 550.105(5)(b), Florida Statutes, provides, in pertinent part that “the 

commission may deny, suspend, revoke, or declare ineligible any occupational 

license if the applicant for such license has been convicted in this state, in any other 

state, or under the laws of the United States of a capital felony, a felony, or an offense 

in any other state which would be a felony under the laws of this state….” 

 

Section 550.105(10)(d), Florida Statutes, provides that each licensee shall inform 

the Commission within 48 hours, “if he or she is convicted of or has entered a plea 

of guilty or nolo contendere to any disqualifying offense, regardless of 

adjudication.” Accordingly, Respondent’s license can be revoked or suspended 

based on the felony conviction. 

 

Section 849.086(6)(f), Florida Statutes, provides that the “provisions specified in s. 

550.105(4), (5), (6), (7), (8), and (10) relating to licensure shall be applicable to 

cardroom occupational licenses.” 

 

Rule 75-11.011, Florida Administrative Code, states: 

 

Any cardroom occupational licensee shall provide written 

notification to the division when the licensee has been 

arrested, indicted, or charged in any other way with a 

criminal offense within five days of the arrest, or if not 

arrested, within five days of the receipt of a charging 

document. Licensees are not required to report non-

criminal traffic offenses. 

 

Staff Recommendation: The Florida Gaming Control Commission should enter a 

final order revoking Respondent’s Cardroom Employee Occupational License 

number 13391769. 
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STATE OF FLORIDA  
FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION 

DIVISION OF PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING 

FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION, 
DIVISION OF PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING, 

 Petitioner, 

v. 

KRISTIN MILLER BROWN, 

 Respondent. 
______________________________________/ 

FGCC Case No.: 2023-051666 

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT 

The Florida Gaming Control Commission, Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 

(“Petitioner”), files this Administrative Complaint against Kristin Miller Brown (“Respondent”), 

and alleges: 

1. Petitioner is the state agency charged with regulating pari-mutuel wagering and

cardroom operations pursuant to chapters 550 and 849, Florida Statutes. 

2. At all times material hereto, Respondent held a Cardroom Employee Occupational

License, number 13391769, issued pursuant to section 849.086(6) Florida Statutes. 

3. On or about May 31, 2023, Respondent was arrested and charged with Trafficking

Cocaine, Trafficking Fentanyl, Trafficking Methamphetamine, Possession of Marijuana, 

Possession of Amphetamine and Dextroamphetamine, Trafficking Phencyclidine, and Possession 

of Drug Paraphernalia.  

4. On or about September 7, 2023, Respondent entered a plea of guilty and was

convicted of Sale of Cocaine, Sale of Fentanyl, and Possession of Amphetamines, felonies, in the 

8/01/2024
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Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida in case 

number 2023CF004705AMB. 

COUNT I 

5. Petitioner realleges and adopts paragraphs numbered one through four as if set forth 

fully herein. 

6. Pursuant to section 550.105(5)(b), Florida Statutes: 

The commission may deny, suspend, revoke, or declare ineligible 
any occupational license if the applicant for or holder thereof has 
violated the provisions of this chapter or the rules of the commission 
governing the conduct of persons connected with racetracks and 
frontons. In addition, the commission may deny, suspend, revoke, 
or declare ineligible any occupational license if the applicant for 
such license has been convicted in this state, in any other state, or 
under the laws of the United States of a capital felony, a felony, or 
an offense in any other state which would be a felony under the laws 
of this state involving arson; trafficking in, conspiracy to traffic in, 
smuggling, importing, conspiracy to smuggle or import, or delivery, 
sale, or distribution of a controlled substance; or a crime involving 
a lack of good moral character, or has had a pari-mutuel license 
revoked by this state or any other jurisdiction for an offense related 
to pari-mutuel wagering. 

 
7. Section 849.086(6)(f), Florida Statutes, provides that “[t]he commission shall adopt 

rules regarding cardroom occupational licenses. The provisions specified in s. 550.105(4), (5), (6), 

(7), (8), and (10) relating to licensure shall be applicable to cardroom occupational licenses.” 

8. Section 550.105(5)(d), Florida Statutes, provides the term “convicted” means 

“having been found guilty, with or without adjudication of guilt, as a result of a jury verdict, 

nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.” 

9. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated sections 550.105(5)(b) and 

849.086(6)(f), Florida Statutes, by entering a plea of guilty and being convicted of Sale of Cocaine, 
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Sale of Fentanyl, and Possession of Amphetamines, felonies, in Palm Beach County, Florida on 

September 7, 2023 and is therefore subject to suspension or revocation of her occupational license. 

COUNT II 

10. Petitioner realleges and adopts paragraphs numbered one through four as if set forth

fully herein. 

11. Respondent failed to notify Petitioner within 48 hours of her September 7, 2023,

conviction for Sale of Cocaine, Sale of Fentanyl, and Possession of Amphetamines, in Palm Beach 

County, Florida. 

12. Pursuant to section 550.105(10)(d), Florida Statutes, each licensee shall inform the

Commission, within 48 hours, “if he or she is convicted of or has entered a plea of guilty or nolo 

contendere to any disqualifying offense, regardless of adjudication.” 

13. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated section 550.105(10)(d), Florida

Statutes, by failing to inform the Division of her September 7, 2023, conviction for a disqualifying 

offense within 48 hours and is therefore subject to suspension or revocation of her occupational 

license under section 550.0251(10), Florida Statutes. 

COUNT III 

14. Petitioner realleges and adopts paragraphs numbered one through four as if set forth

fully herein. 

15. Respondent failed to provide written notification to Petitioner within five days of

her May 31, 2023 arrest. 

16. Rule 75-11.011, Florida Administrative Code, states:

Any cardroom occupational licensee shall provide written
notification to the division when the licensee has been arrested,
indicted, or charged in any other way with a criminal offense within
five days of the arrest, or if not arrested, within five days of the
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receipt of a charging document. Licensees are not required to report 
non-criminal traffic offenses. 

17. Based on the foregoing, Respondent violated rule 75-11.011, Florida

Administrative Code, by failing to provide written notification to Petitioner within five days of her 

May 31, 2023, arrest. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner respectfully requests the Florida Gaming Control Commission 

enter an Order revoking or suspending Respondent’s Occupational License, along with any other 

remedy provided by sections 550.105(5)(b), 550.0251(10), and 849.086(6)(f), Florida Statutes, 

and/or the rules promulgated thereunder. 

This Administrative Complaint for FGCC Case Number 2023-051666 is signed this 1st 

day of August 2024. 

/s/Emily A. Alvarado  
Emily A. Alvarado 
Chief Attorney 
FBN: 1025200 
Florida Gaming Control Commission 
Office of the General Counsel 
Division of Pari-Mutuel Wagering 
4070 Esplanade Way, Suite 250 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2202 
Telephone: (850) 794-8066 
Facsimile: (850) 536-8709 
Primary: Emily.Alvarado@flagaming.gov 
Secondary: Ebonie.Lanier@flgaming.gov 
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NOTICE OF RIGHTS 

Pursuant to sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, you have the right to request a 

hearing to challenge the charges contained in this Administrative Complaint. If you choose to 

request a hearing, you will have the right to be represented by counsel, or other qualified 

representative, to present evidence and argument, to call and cross-examine witnesses, and to have 

subpoenas and subpoenas duces tecum issued on your behalf. 

Any request for an administrative proceeding to challenge or contest the charges contained 

in this Administrative Complaint must conform to rule 28-106.2015, Florida Administrative Code. 

Pursuant to rule 28-106.111, Florida Administrative Code, you must request a hearing within 21 

days from receipt of this Notice, or you will waive your right to request a hearing. 

Mediation under section 120.573, Florida Statutes, is not available to resolve this 

Administrative Complaint. 
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From: Kristin Brown
To: Ebonie Lanier
Subject: Re: Florida Gaming Control Commission - Case No. 2023051666
Date: Thursday, August 1, 2024 4:06:04 PM
Attachments: image001.jpg

I did not realize I had to let the commission know of my arrest. I wish to surrender my license
and waive my right to a hearing. 

Thank you,
Kristin Brown 

On Thu, Aug 1, 2024 at 3:57 PM Ebonie Lanier <Ebonie.Lanier@flgaming.gov> wrote:

Good Afternoon Ms. Brown,

License No. 13391769

This is to inform you that probable cause has been found to believe that you violated certain
provisions of the Florida Statutes.

The Administrative Complaint included in this email outlines the formal charges brought
against you, along with an Election of Rights Form.

If you have any questions, please don't hesitate to contact us.

Thanks,

-Ebonie Lanier

Ebonie Lanier

Administrative Assistant III

Office of the General Counsel

Office: (850) 794-8072

Fax: (850) 536-8709

7/01/2024
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From: Ebonie Lanier
To: Clerk
Subject: EOR ready to be filed
Date: Thursday, August 1, 2024 4:46:38 PM
Attachments: Re Florida Gaming Control Commission - Case No. 2023051666.msg

Hey Melba,

Please file the attached email for Election of Rights – Option 3

Thanks,
-Ebonie Lanier

Ebonie Lanier
Administrative Assistant III
Office of the General Counsel
Office: (850) 794-8072
Fax: (850) 536-8709

The information contained in this transmission is intended solely for the use of the person(s) named herein. If you are not the intended recipient,
you are hereby notified that any review, dissemination, distribution or duplication of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you are not the
intended recipient, please contact me by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.

The State of Florida has a very broad public records law pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. Most written communications to and from
state officials regarding state business are public records, available to the public and media upon request. Therefore, your e-mail communications
may be subject to public disclosure.  LARGER VIEW
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ROUTING SLIP 

CRIMINAL CONVICTION WHILE LICENSED 
 

*Please attach Routing Slip to front of case file. 
                                                                                                                      1 of 1 
 

 
RE:  BROWN, KRISTIN M. – 13391769             Case No:  2023 05 1666 
                 (LICENSEE NAME – LICENSE #) 

 
 

PBKC HOSTESS  Yes             No 
Facility (d/b/a name) Occupation/Job Title Notified by Licensee 

       

DATE OF CONVICTION:        SEPTEMBER 7, 2023 
                             (DATE) 
 
 

Investigations Section:   
Reviewed by Bradford D. Jones 9/21/2023    

      (Initial & Date) 
ARCI CHECKED  Yes                         

                                 No  __________ 
 
 
The attached file has been reviewed for completeness and accuracy, and has been forwarded to the 
Licensing Section. 
 
 

Licensing Section: 
 
Reviewed/Forwarded to legal by   David Donaldson         ________________ 

                   (Initial & Date) 
 
Is the applicant currently under suspension, has unpaid fines, or has been refused a 
license by any gaming or racing jurisdiction?  
 

                             Yes _________   
                                No  _________ 

 
Comments:              
 
Investigative Findings:  
 
 

May 12, 2023 Palm Beach Gardens Police Department, FL. – Trafficking Cocaine over 
28 grams, - Trafficking in Fentanyl 14-28 grams - Trafficking in 
Methamphetamine over 4 grams - Possession of Marijuana - Trafficking 
in Phencyclidine and Possession of Drug Paraphernalia – On September 
7, 2023, Brown pled Guilty (Adjudication Withheld) to Sale of Cocaine, 
Sale of Fentanyl and Possession of Amphetamines – and was sentenced 
to 100 days in the Palm Beach County jail; (with credit for 100 days of 
time served), 3 years’ Probation and assessed $794.00 in Court 
costs/Fines. 
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CONTINUATION 
 
On May 31, 2023, Kristin Miller BROWN was arrested by the Palm Beach Gardens Police 
Department and charged with Trafficking Cocaine over 28 grams, Trafficking in Fentanyl 14-28 
grams, Trafficking in Methamphetamine over 4 grams, Possession of Marijuana, Trafficking in 
Phencyclidine and Possession of Drug Paraphernalia.  On September 7, 2023, BROWN pled 
guilty to Sale of Cocaine, Sale of Fentanyl and Possession of Amphetamines, she was sentenced 
to 100 days in Palm Beach County jail; (she received credit time served for the 100 days) three 
(3) years’ probation; $794.00 dollars in Court costs and Fines due by October 7, 2024.  The 
remaining charges were dispositioned as dropped by the prosecution.  The sentencing on the 
three charges is to run concurrently (Exhibit #2 & 3). 
 
A check of Versa shows that BROWN is currently licensed through June 30, 2025 (EXHIBIT #4). 
On August 16, 2023, An Enforcement Alert was issued noting that BROWN will need to submit 
court disposition paperwork for the May 31, 2023, arrest in Palm Beach County prior to licensure 
(Exhibit #3). 
 
On September 19, 2023, according to Versa License check BROWN’S last known employer is 
listed as the Palm Beach Kennel Club.  I verified BROWN’S employment status with Palm Beach 
Kennel Club Human Resources Director Jeanette Roberts.  She stated that BROWN applied for 
employment but never actually started working, therefore her file was released on November 2, 
2022. 
 
Conclusion: The findings of this investigation indicate that BROWN is in violation of Rule 75-
11.011- Notification of Criminal Conviction or Charge BROWN failed to notify the division of her 
convictions and charges from her May 31, 2023, arrest. 
 
Case Status: Closed by Investigations and forwarded to Legal for review. 
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NOTICE OF RULE DEVELOPMENT 
 
NAME OF AGENCY 
Florida Gaming Control Commission 
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:   
75-15.002 Patron Dispute Process 
 
PURPOSE AND EFFECT:  The purpose and effect of Rule 75-15.002 is to establish a process for the Florida Gaming 
Control Commission to review appeals of patron disputes involving gaming in facilities operated by the Seminole 
Tribe of Florida and/or participating in sports betting through sports books conducted and operated by the Seminole 
Tribe of Florida. 
 
SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The process for patrons gaming on the premises of facilities operated by 
the Seminole Tribe of Florida and/or sports betting through sports books conducted and operated by the Seminole 
Tribe of Florida to appeal a decision issued by the Seminole Tribal Gaming Commission in a dispute involving a claim 
for a prize. 
 
RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 16.712(2)(a), FS 
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 16.712(1)(a), (f), FS 
 
IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE 
DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA 
ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER. 
 
THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY 
OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Melba Apellaniz, Clerk of the Commission, Florida Gaming 
Control Commission, 4070 Esplanade Way, Suite 250, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.  Tel: (850) 794-8067. Email: 
clerk@flgaming.gov. 
 
 
THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS AVAILABLE AT NO CHARGE 
FROM THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED ABOVE. 
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NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE 

NAME OF AGENCY 
Florida Gaming Control Commission 
RULE NO.: RULE TITLE: 
75-15.002 Patron Dispute Process 
 
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of Rule 75-15.002 is to establish a process for the Florida Gaming 
Control Commission to review appeals of patron disputes involving gaming in facilities operated by the Seminole 
Tribe of Florida and/or participating in sports betting through sports books conducted and operated by the Seminole 
Tribe of Florida. 
 
SUMMARY:  Rule 75-15.002 incorporates by reference the Memorandum of Agreement Between the Seminole Tribe 
Gaming Commission and the Florida Gaming Control Commission (the “MOA”) effective XX, XX, 2024.  The MOA 
sets forth the process for the Florida Gaming Control Commission to review appeals of decisions issued by the 
Seminole Tribal Gaming Commission in patron disputes, including submission of evidence and arguments to the 
Florida Gaming Control Commission by the Patron and the Seminole Tribal Gaming Commission. 
 
SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION: 
The Agency has determined that this rule will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly 
or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of $200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the 
rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency. 
The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the 
statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described 
herein: Based on the nature of the rule, the Commission determined that the proposed rule is not expected to have any 
adverse impact on small business or increase regulatory costs that exceed the criteria in section 120.541(2), F.S., and 
that the proposed rule will not require legislative ratification.  
 
Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a 
proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice. 
 
RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 16.712(2)(a), FS 
LAW IMPLEMENTED: 16.712(1)(a), (f), FS 
 
IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED 
AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR. 
 
THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS:  
Melba Apellaniz, Clerk of the Commission, Florida Gaming Control Commission, 4070 Esplanade Way, Suite 250, 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399. Tel: (850) 794-8067. Email: clerk@flgaming.gov. 
 
THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS: 
 
75-15.002 Patron Dispute Process 
 
(1) An appeal of a decision issued by the Seminole Tribal Gaming Commission in a dispute, disagreement, or other 
grievance raised by the patron that involves a claim for a prize shall be made in accordance with the process and 
procedures set forth in the Memorandum of Agreement Between the Seminole Tribal Gaming Commission and the 
Florida Gaming Control Commission Governing Patron Dispute Procedures, entered into and by the Florida Gaming 
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Control Commission and the Seminole Tribal Gaming Commission effective XX,XX, 2024, hereby incorporated by 
reference in this rule (hyperlink) (the “Patron Dispute Process”).  A copy of the Patron Dispute Process may be 
obtained at www.flgaming.gov or by contacting the Florida Gaming Control Commission, 4070 Esplanade Way, Suite 
250, Tallahassee, Florida 32399. 
 
(2) The Florida Gaming Control Commission will reject a patron’s request for appeal of a decision issued by the 
Seminole Tribal Gaming Commission if the request for appeal does not comply with the process set forth in the Patron 
Dispute Process.  
 
Rulemaking Authority 16.712(2)(a), 6 FS. Law Implemented 16.712(1)(a), (f) FS. History—New X-XX-XX 
 
NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: The Florida Gaming Control Commission 
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: The Commissioners of the Florida 
Gaming Control Commission 
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: XX, XX, 2024 
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: XX, XX, 2024 
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FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  

 

TITLE:  Subpoenas and Court 
Appearances By Members in their Official 
Capacities 

POLICY NUMBER 

02.14.01 

FGCC SECTION 

Law Enforcement 

AUTHORITY 

Section 16.711, Fla. Stat. 
Section 16.712, Fla. Stat. 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  
  
 
 
REVISED:       

 

 
 

I. STATEMENT OF POLICY 
 
Division of Gaming Enforcement members will respond appropriately to all subpoenas and 
any other court-ordered appearances. 
 

II. PURPOSE 
 
This policy establishes the guidelines for Division members who must appear in court or 
at depositions in their official capacity. This policy ensures that the criminal prosecution of 
crimes, which is heavily dependent on cooperation with law enforcement, is successful at 
each stage through final disposition. 

 
III. SUBPOENAS 

 
If a civil subpoena is being served, the General Counsel, or his or her designee, must be 
informed that a civil subpoena is being served. The General Counsel, or his or her 
designee, will review the subpoena and either reject or accept the civil subpoena. 
Criminal subpoenas may be accepted by the Division without review from the General 
Counsel. 
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The Director of Gaming Enforcement is authorized to receive a subpoena on behalf of 
the Division. The Director of Gaming Enforcement may designate and authorize a 
Division member in each regional office to accept a subpoena on behalf of any member 
within that regional office. 
 
A. RECEIPT OF SUBPOENAS OR NOTICE OF TAKING DEPOSITION 

 
Criminal subpoenas may be received via process servers or by email to 
Criminal_Subpoenas@flgaming.gov.  Civil subpoenas may only be received via 
process servers. Subpoenas will be handled as follows:  

 
1. The Director of Gaming Enforcement, or his or her designee, shall be the 

designated Division employee for accepting subpoenas to be served on 
members of the Division. The Division member accepting the subpoena 
shall date and time stamp the subpoena(s) and follow the notification 
procedure set forth below in Section B of this Policy. 
 

2. Subpoenas shall be refused for the following reasons: 
 

a. If not timely. If the appearance date is less than five (5) days from 
the date of service, the subpoena should be rejected. Exceptions to 
this requirement may only be approved by the  Chief of Law 
Enforcement Services or his/her designee. 

b. If the member is no longer employed with the Florida Gaming 
Control Commission. 

c. If the member is not scheduled to work before the scheduled court 
or deposition date. 
 

B. NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 
 

Upon receipt of the issued subpoena, the Division member who accepted the 
subpoena shall: 

 
1. Notify the Division member and the member’s direct supervisor of the 

subpoena by email immediately with a copy of the subpoena attached. 
 

2. Complete an entry in the subpoena log noting the member’s name, 
supervisor, date and time to appear, the defendant’s name, and the 
member’s identification number who made the notification by email. 

 
3. Upon receipt of an email notification for a subpoena, the subpoenaed 

employee will sign the subpoena log, noting the time and date of electronic 
or physical receipt of the subpoena. 
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4. If a subpoena has been accepted for a member who is on approved leave 
and is not scheduled to return before the scheduled appearance, the 
member’s supervisor shall notify the appropriate court office or attorney. If a 
member is out on an emergency and a subpoena is served, the member’s 
supervisor shall notify the appropriate court office or attorney. 

 
Any member who is subpoenaed to testify, agrees to testify, or provides 
information on behalf or at the request of any party other than the General Counsel 
or the prosecutor shall notify his/her immediate supervisor without delay regarding: 
 
1. Any civil case where the State of Florida or one of its members, as a result 

of his/her official capacity, is a party. 
 

2. Any civil case where any other city, county, state, or federal unit of 
government or a member of any such unit of government, as a result of 
his/her official capacity, is a party. 

 
3. Any criminal proceeding where the member is called to testify or provide 

information on behalf of the defense. 
 

4. Any civil action stemming from the member’s on-duty activity or because of 
his/her association with the Division of Gaming Enforcement. 

 
5. Any personnel or disciplinary matter when called by a governmental entity 

other than the Division of Gaming Enforcement to testify or to provide 
information. 

 
The supervisor will then notify the Director of Gaming Enforcement and the 
appropriate prosecuting attorney as may be indicated by the case. The Director of 
Gaming Enforcement shall notify the General Counsel to determine if additional 
legal support is necessary. 
 
No member will be retaliated against for testifying in any matter. 
 

C. CIVIL SUBPOENAS 
 
The Division will compensate members who appear in their official capacities on 
civil matters arising out of their official duties, per Rule 60L-34, Florida 
Administrative Code (F.A.C.), and the overtime provisions of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, as they may apply. 
 
When a member is required to appear in court outside of his/her established work 
schedule, he/she will be compensated under the current collective bargaining 
agreement. 
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The Division may seek reimbursement for the member’s compensation through 
the civil attorney of record who subpoenaed the member. 
 

IV. FAILURE TO APPEAR 
 
Any member cited for failure to appear in response to any properly served subpoena or 
court-ordered appearance may be subject to discipline. This includes properly served 
orders to appear that were issued by a state administrative agency. 
 

V. STANDBY 
 
To facilitate standby agreements, members are required to provide and maintain current 
information on their addresses and contact telephone numbers with the Division. 
 
If a member on standby changes his/her location during the day, the member shall notify 
the designated Division member of how he/she can be reached. Members are required to 
remain on standby until released by the court or the party that issued the subpoena. 
 

VI. COURTROOM AND DEPOSITION APPEARANCE AND EXCUSAL 
 

Members of this Division will respond to subpoenas requesting their appearance in court 
and for the taking of depositions in matters arising out of Division employment. 
 
A. REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. Members subpoenaed to appear in court or at a deposition are required to 

attend. 
 

2. If the member has approved leave or is out of the area, the member shall 
notify the appropriate court office or attorney in writing within five (5) working 
days prior to scheduled leave. It will be the responsibility of the member to 
make arrangements to request a change in the date of appearance if they 
have approved leave or are out of the area. 

a. Writing a letter or e-mail does not automatically excuse the member 
from their appearance. 

b. The appropriate court office or attorney must grant the request, and 
the name of the individual granting the excusal must be noted.  
 

3. If a member is sick, they will notify the appropriate court office, attorney, and 
the member's supervisor. 
 

4. A subpoena shall have priority over an order issued by a supervisor. The 
affected member shall inform the supervisor that a subpoena is in effect for 
those instances where a conflict would exist. 
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5. In the event of conflicting subpoenas in which the member is called to appear 
in two locations at the same time and date, the member shall be responsible 
for obtaining a release from one subpoena to honor the other. If the member 
is unable to obtain a release, the appropriate attorney’s office issuing the 
second subpoena shall be contacted and given the details of the refused 
release. 
 

6. All members testifying in court or at depositions shall completely familiarize 
themselves with all aspects of the case in which they were involved before 
their appearance and shall be fully prepared to give accurate, complete, and 
truthful testimony. 

 
VII. COURTROOM PROTOCOL 

 
A. REQUIREMENTS BEFORE TESTIFYING IN COURT 

 
1. Before the date of testifying, the subpoenaed member shall request a copy 

of relevant reports and become familiar with the content to be prepared for 
court. 
 

B. REQUIREMENTS WHEN TESTIFYING IN COURT 
 

1. Members must be punctual when appearing in court and shall be prepared 
to proceed immediately with the case for which they are scheduled to appear. 
 

2. Members shall dress in business attire. 
 

3. Members shall observe all rules of the court in which they are appearing and 
shall remain alert to changes in the assigned courtroom where their matter 
is to be heard. 
 

4. Members shall not chew gum. 
 

5. Members, while on the witness stand, shall sit erect in an attentive manner, 
face the jury while testifying, and speak clearly and audibly. 

 
6. Members shall be familiar with the rules of criminal procedure and the laws 

of evidence. 
 

7. Members shall testify truthfully and fairly, whether being questioned by the 
prosecution, defense, or the court. 
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VIII. SUBPOENAS AND COURT APPEARANCES NOT RELATED TO MEMBERS’ 

EMPLOYMENT OR APPOINTMENT  
 
Members receiving valid subpoenas for actions not related to their employment or 
appointment, requiring them to appear during their established work hours may be 
compensated per Rule 60L-34.0071(3)(b)1, F.A.C., provided they are not a party to the 
action. 

 
Members receiving valid subpoenas for actions in which they are personally a party will 
not be compensated for appearances required during their established work hours.  
Arrangements for time off shall be coordinated through their immediate supervisors, per 
Rule Chapter 60L-34, F.A.C. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This policy adopted by the Commission on: 
 
 
 
________________________________  _____________________________ 
    
Louis Trombetta      Date   
Executive Director   
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FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  

 

TITLE:  Communicable Diseases POLICY NUMBER 

02.62.01 

FGCC SECTION 

Law Enforcement 

AUTHORITY 

CFA 5.23 - 29.01M (A), (C), (G), (H), 29.02M (A), 
(B), (C), (E), (F), (G), (H), (I) or the most recent 

version 

Section 16.711, F.S. 

Section 16.712, F.S. 

Section 381.004, F.S. 

Section 384.287, F.S. 

Section 775.0877, F.S. 

Section 960.003, F.S. 

29 C.F.R. § 1910.1030 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  
  
 
 
REVISED:       

 

 
 

I. STATEMENT OF POLICY 
 
The Division of Gaming Enforcement is committed to providing a safe work environment 
for its members. Members should be aware that they are ultimately responsible for their 
own health and safety. 
 

II. PURPOSE 
 
This policy provides general guidelines to assist in minimizing the risk of division 
members contracting and/or spreading communicable diseases. 
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This policy establishes and mandates a universal precautions philosophy. 
 
III. DEFINITIONS 

 
A. Communicable disease - A human disease caused by microorganisms that are present 

in and transmissible through human blood, bodily fluid, tissue, or by breathing or 
coughing. These diseases commonly include but are not limited to hepatitis B virus 
(HBV), human immunodeficiency virus (HIV), and tuberculosis. 

B. Exposure - When an eye, mouth, mucous membrane, or non-intact skin comes into 
contact with blood or other potentially infectious bodily fluids or materials, or when these 
substances are injected or infused under the skin; when an individual is exposed to a 
person who has a disease that can be passed through the air by talking, sneezing, or 
coughing (i.e., tuberculosis), or the individual is in an area that was occupied by such a 
person. Exposure only includes those instances that occur due to a member's position at 
the Division of Gaming Enforcement. (See the exposure control plan for further details to 
assist in identifying whether an exposure has occurred.) 

C. Universal precautions - An approach to infection control where all human blood and 
certain human bodily fluids are treated as if infectious for HIV, HBV, and other 
bloodborne pathogens. 
 

IV. EXPOSURE CONTROL OFFICER 
 
The Director of Gaming Enforcement will assign a person as the Exposure Control 
Officer (ECO). 
 
The ECO shall develop an exposure control plan that includes: 
 
A. Exposure-prevention and decontamination procedures. 
B. Procedures for when and how to obtain medical attention in the event of an exposure 

or suspected exposure. 
C. The provision that division members will have no-cost access to the appropriate 

personal protective equipment (PPE) (i.e., gloves, face masks, eye protection, 
pocket masks) that is appropriate for each member's position and risk of exposure. 

D. Evaluation of persons in custody for any exposure risk and measures to separate 
them. 

E. Compliance with all relevant laws or regulations related to communicable diseases, 
including: 
1. Enabling members to request that a person be screened for a sexually 

transmissible disease that can be transmitted through a significant exposure after 
the member experiences a significant exposure from contact with the person 
while acting within the scope of employment (section 384.287, Fla. Stat.). 

 
The ECO should periodically review and update the exposure control plan and review 
implementation of the plan. 
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1. Additional Duties 
 

The ECO shall also ensure the following: 
 

A. The development of a list of all division job classifications that may be at-
risk of exposure to blood or other potentially infectious materials. 

B. Procedures for maintaining the sanitation of the work environment and 
responding to contamination incidents with proper decontamination. 

C. An annual review of the exposure control plan is documented and 
updates to eliminate or minimize exposure are considered. 

D. Procedures for maintaining property for disposal, needles and syringes 
not being held as evidence, and medical waste (e.g., used rubber gloves). 

E. Procedures for laundering contaminated clothing. 
F. Procedures for proper labeling and signage for hazards to members. 

 
V. EXPOSURE PREVENTION AND MITIGATION 
 

1. General Precautions 
 
All members are expected to use good judgment and follow training and 
procedures related to mitigating the risks associated with communicable disease. 
This includes, but is not limited to: 
 

A. Stocking disposable gloves, antiseptic hand cleanser, CPR masks or 
other specialized equipment in the work area of division vehicles, as 
applicable. 

B. Wearing division-approved disposable gloves when contact with blood, 
other potentially infectious materials, mucous membranes and non-intact 
skin can be reasonably anticipated. 

C. Washing hands immediately or as soon as feasible after removal of 
gloves or other PPE. 

D. Treating all human blood and bodily fluids/tissue as if it is known to be 
infectious for a communicable disease. 

E. Using an appropriate barrier device when providing CPR. 
F. Using a face mask or shield if it is reasonable to anticipate an exposure to 

an airborne transmissible disease. 
G. Decontaminating non-disposable equipment (e.g., flashlight, control 

devices, clothing and portable radio) as soon as possible if the equipment 
is a potential source of exposure. 
1. Clothing that has been contaminated by blood or other potentially 

infectious materials shall be removed immediately or as soon as 
feasible and stored/ decontaminated appropriately. 
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H. Handling all sharps and items that cut or puncture (e.g., needles, broken 
glass, razors, knives) cautiously and using puncture-resistant containers 
for their storage and/or transportation. 

I. Avoiding eating, drinking, smoking, applying cosmetics or lip balm, or 
handling contact lenses where there is a reasonable likelihood of 
exposure. 

J. Disposing of biohazardous waste appropriately or labeling biohazardous 
material properly when it is stored. 

 
2. Immunizations 

 
Members who could be exposed to HBV due to their positions may receive the 
HBV vaccine and any routine booster at no cost. 
 

3. Immunization Procedures 
 
The ECO should establish HBV immunization procedures that include, but are 
not limited to: 
 

A. The availability of vaccinations after receipt of infectious diseases training 
and within 10 days of a triggering event (e.g., new assignment, 
promotion). 

B. The requirement that a member who declines an immunization sign a 
form documenting the member’s decision. 

1. Members who initially decline a vaccination may change their 
mind and receive a vaccination. 

C. The requirement that the vaccine be provided by a certified health care 
professional and at a reasonable time and place and at no cost for 
members. 

 
VI. POST EXPOSURE 

 
1. Initial Post-Exposure Steps 

 
Members who experience an exposure or suspected exposure shall: 
 

A. Begin decontamination procedures immediately (e.g., wash hands and 
any other skin with soap and water, flush mucous membranes with 
water). 

B. Obtain medical attention as appropriate. 
C. Notify a supervisor as soon as practical. 
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2. Reporting Requirements 
 
The supervisor on-duty shall investigate every exposure or suspected exposure 
that occurs as soon as possible following the incident. The supervisor shall 
ensure the following information is documented: 
 

A. Name of the member exposed 
B. Date and time of the incident 
C. Location of the incident 
D. Potentially infectious materials involved and the source of exposure (e.g., 

identification of the person who may have been the source) 
E. Work being done during exposure 
F. How the incident occurred or was caused 
G. PPE in use at the time of the incident 
H. Actions taken post-event (e.g., clean-up, notifications) 

 
The supervisor shall advise the member that disclosing the identity and/or 
infectious status of a source to the public or to anyone who is not involved in the 
follow-up process is prohibited. The supervisor should complete the incident 
documentation in conjunction with other reporting requirements that may apply 
(see the Work-Related Illness and Injury Reporting and Illness and Injury 
Prevention policies). 
 

3. Medical Consultation, Evaluation and Treatment 
 
Division members shall have the opportunity to have a confidential medical 
evaluation immediately after an exposure and follow-up evaluations as 
necessary.  
 
The ECO should request a written opinion/evaluation from the treating medical 
professional that contains only the following information: 
 

A. Whether the member has been informed of the results of the evaluation. 
B. Whether the member has been notified of any medical conditions 

resulting from exposure to blood or other potentially infectious materials 
which require further evaluation or treatment. 
 

No other information should be requested or accepted by the ECO. 
 

4. Counseling 
 
The Division shall provide the member, and his/her family if necessary, the 
opportunity for counseling and consultation regarding the exposure. 
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5. Source Testing 
 
Testing a person for communicable diseases when that person was the source of 
an exposure should be done when it is desired by the exposed member or when 
it is otherwise appropriate. Source testing is the responsibility of the ECO. If the 
ECO is unavailable to seek timely testing of the source, it is the responsibility of 
the exposed member’s supervisor to ensure testing is sought.  
 
Source testing may be achieved by: 
 

A. Obtaining consent from the person who was the source of the exposure. 
 
B. In the event of a significant exposure, as such term is defined in Section 

381.004, Fla. Stat., HIV testing order for the person who was the source 
of the exposure under Section 381.004, Fla. Stat. 

 
C. In the event of a significant exposure, as such term is defined in Section 

381.004, Fla. Stat., screening the person who was the source of the 
exposure for sexually transmissible diseases under HIV and hepatitis 
testing orders related to a criminal act, pursuant to Section 960.003, Fla. 
Stat. 
 

Since there is the potential for overlap between the different manners in which 
source testing may occur, the ECO is responsible for coordinating the testing to 
prevent unnecessary or duplicate testing. 
 
The ECO should seek the consent of the person who was the source of the 
exposure for testing and consult the General Counsel to discuss other options 
when no statute exists for compelling the source of an exposure to undergo 
testing if he/she refuses. 
 

VII. CONFIDENTIALITY OF REPORTS 
 
Medical information shall remain in confidential files and shall not be disclosed to anyone 
without the member’s written consent (except as required by law). Test results from 
persons who may have been the source of an exposure are to be kept confidential as well. 

 
1. Records Retention 

The Division shall maintain accurate medical and training records for each member 
with occupational exposure in accordance with the established records retention 
schedule. 
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VIII. TRAINING 
 

All members shall participate in training regarding communicable diseases commensurate with 
the requirements of their position. The training:  
 

A. Shall be provided at the time of initial assignment to tasks where an 
occupational exposure may take place and at least annually after the 
initial training. 

B. Shall be provided whenever the member is assigned new tasks or 
procedures affecting the member's potential exposure to communicable 
disease. 

C. Shall provide guidance on what constitutes an exposure, what steps can 
be taken to avoid an exposure, and what steps should be taken if a 
suspected exposure occurs (e.g., reporting requirements, medical follow-
up). 

D. Shall provide familiarization with the exposure control plan and this policy 
(universal precautions philosophy). 

E. Shall provide familiarization with signs, labels, and color-coding methods 
for identifying biohazardous materials. 

F. Shall provide familiarization with biohazardous waste disposal 
procedures. 

G. Shall provide point-of-contact guidance for division members seeking 
additional or clarifying information, or answers to exposure control 
questions. 

H. Shall provide familiarization with the basic epidemiology, symptoms, and 
the modes of transmissions of infectious diseases. 

I. Shall provide an explanation of the use and limitations of methods that 
will prevent or reduce exposure, including PPE. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

This policy adopted by the Commission on: 
 
 
 
_______________________________  _____________________________ 
    
Louis Trombetta      Date   
Executive Director   
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FLORIDA GAMING CONTROL COMMISSION 

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  

 

TITLE:  Asset Forfeiture POLICY NUMBER 

02.66.01 

FGCC SECTION 

Law Enforcement 

AUTHORITY 

“National Code of Professional Conduct for Asset 
Forfeiture” (1994; US Department of Justice) 

Section 893.01, F.S. et seq. 
Section 893.12(2)(e), F.S. 

Section 895.05, F.S. 
Section 895.09, F.S. 

Section 932.701, F.S. 
Section 932.703, F.S. 
Section 932.704, F.S. 
Section 932.7055, F.S. 
Section 932.706, F.S. 
Section 932.7061, F.S. 

CFA 5.23 - 15.19M or most recent version 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  
  
 
 
REVISED:       

 

 
 

I. STATEMENT OF POLICY 
 

The Division of Gaming Enforcement recognizes that appropriately applied forfeiture 
laws are helpful to enforce the law, deter crime and reduce the economic incentive of 
crime. However, the potential of revenue shall not be allowed to jeopardize the effective 
investigation and prosecution of criminal offenses, officer safety, the integrity of ongoing 
investigations or any person's due process rights. 
 
It is the policy of the Division of Gaming Enforcement that all members, including those 
assigned to internal or external law enforcement task force operations, shall comply with 
all state and federal laws pertaining to forfeitures. 
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It is the policy of the Division of Gaming Enforcement that quotas for the seizure of 
property shall not be established. Neither the number or value of items seized by any 
special agent shall be taken into consideration or otherwise used as a basis for the 
evaluation of a special agent's overall performance or the establishment of 
compensation or other terms of employment. 

 
II. PURPOSE 

 
This policy describes the authority and procedure for the seizure, forfeiture, and property 
liquidation associated with designated offenses. 

 
III. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

 
A. The Division will appropriately and wisely use forfeiture actions under the Florida 

Contraband Forfeiture Act, Florida’s racketeering laws (RICO), or other state 
statutes providing forfeiture options, or by utilizing federal forfeiture options to deter 
and prevent the continued use of contraband articles for criminal purposes, or to 
enhance criminal law enforcement otherwise while protecting the proprietary 
interests of innocent owners and lien holders. 

 
B. Law enforcement is the principal objective of asset forfeiture under the Florida 

Contraband Forfeiture Act. The potential for obtaining revenues from forfeitures 
must not override fundamental considerations such as public safety, the safety of 
law enforcement personnel, the investigation and prosecution of criminal activity, 
and the respect for the rights of individuals as provided by law. 

 
C. The employment, salary, promotion or other compensation of any member of the 

Division will not depend upon obtaining a quota of seizures of property for 
forfeiture. 

 
D. Sworn members, including those participating in multi-agency investigations or task 

forces, will comply with applicable law, this policy, and the National Code, 
whichever is appropriate. 

 
E. The Division will ensure that members involved in seizing property for forfeiture 

receive training and continuing education as required by law. The Gaming 
Enforcement Training Coordinator will maintain records demonstrating such 
training. 

 
IV. ASSET SEIZURE 

 
A. When a sworn member discovers currency and questions whether it should be 

seized for forfeiture, a Special Agent Supervisor (SAS) or higher-ranking sworn 
member must be contacted for approval BEFORE the currency may be seized for 
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forfeiture. The supervisor will determine whether sufficient probable cause exists to 
initiate a seizure of the currency for forfeiture. 
1. A supervisor must approve all seizures of currency. 
 
2. A sworn member making a seizure for forfeiture must promptly notify the 

Gaming Enforcement Legal Advisor. 
 

B. A sworn member may seize “Other Property” (not currency) for potential forfeiture 
without advance approval, but, AFTER seizure, he/she must promptly notify a SAS 
or higher ranking sworn member, not directly involved in making the seizure, who 
will review the probable cause supporting the seizure for sufficiency. 

 
C. The determination of whether the Division will file a forfeiture action under the 

Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act will be made by the Executive Director or his 
designee, who is not directly involved in making the seizure of property for 
forfeiture. 

 
D. Property seized for forfeiture may not be used until the rights to, interest in, and title 

to the seized property are perfected in accordance with the Florida Contraband 
Forfeiture Act, other applicable state act, or federal law, whichever applies to the 
forfeiture action. The use or operation of seized property necessary for reasonable 
maintenance is allowed. 

 
E. Members charged with the custody of seized property will make reasonable efforts 

to maintain it so as to minimize its loss of value. 
 

V. FORFEITURE ACTIONS 
 

A. If the Division has no legitimate basis for the continued retention of seized property 
for forfeiture, as evidence, or as otherwise allowed by law, such property will be 
promptly released to the person maintaining a legitimate claim to it. 

 
B. Any settlements of forfeitures, prior to a forfeiture complaint being filed in court, 

must be approved by the Executive Director or designee. Any settlement of a 
forfeiture action involving a claimant who is not represented by an attorney must be 
in writing, and must include language indicating the claimant has, without benefit of 
counsel, freely and voluntarily entered into the settlement. 

 
C. Any diversion of or reduction in the Division’s equitable share of seized/forfeited 

property to another law enforcement agency, regardless of the expectation of 
receipt of property or other benefit offered for the diversion of reduction, must be 
detailed in writing and approved in advance by the Executive Director or designee 
after recommendation by the Director of Law Enforcement and review by the Office 
of General Counsel (OGC) and Division of Administration. 
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D. All forfeited property retained for the Division’s use will be maintained and used in 

accordance with the Florida Contraband Forfeiture Act or relevant state or federal 
restrictions, and in accordance with the Commission’s internal property 
management policies. 

 
E. Any forfeiture action involving real property or requests for sharing of proceeds 

from the sale of real property must be reviewed by OGC and approved by the 
Executive Director or their designee prior to the forfeiture action being initiated or 
prior to requesting a federal share. 

 
F. The Division of Administration, in conjunction with OGC, will conduct and document 

an annual review of the Division’s seizures of property for forfeiture, settlements of 
forfeiture actions, and forfeiture proceedings. The review will ensure that the 
Division honors federal and state constitutional standards and limitations and 
complies with all applicable laws, guidelines, and this policy. If deficiencies are 
noted, prompt appropriate corrective action will be taken to assure compliance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
This policy adopted by the Commission on: 
 
 
 
________________________________  _____________________________  
   
Louis Trombetta      Date   
Executive Director   
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